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VOXSON LIMITED 
Chairman’s Report  
 
Introduction 
Your Company has just completed a most difficult year, possibly its most difficult since Voxson listed on the 
Australian Stock Exchange in 2000. 
 
GSM business closure 
Earlier this year, we announced the closure of Voxson’s major operation, the GSM research and development 
division, due to continuing losses and an inability to establish a sustainable profitable relationship with any 
mobile telephone business entities in China.  Voxson had made a significant investment in its GSM technology 
and we needed to understand if value could be extracted from its exploitation.  However, despite securing a 
potentially profitable contract with one of China’s largest consumer electronics corporations last year, it was 
ultimately unable to generate a profitable outcome. 
  
As indicated in my previous letter to you, the closure of the GSM research and development business ends the 
Company's ambition to pursue the opportunities it saw in the GSM industry, particularly in China. 
  
The Company has fulfilled its contractual obligations with its last GSM customer, Haier Telecommunications 
Limited, in addressing matters regarding the product that Haier purchased in 2005.  However, as noted, Voxson 
has been unable to realize any significant commercial benefits under its contract with Haier, which resulted in 
Voxson’s decision to terminate this activity, despite the potential opportunities represented by this market. 
  
Shareholders need to appreciate that Voxson still carries GSM business legacies into this financial year that will 
require successful resolution, being: 
  

• Ongoing support to meet Voxson's remaining obligations to Haier for the current model of Voxson 
mobile telephone product, for which Voxson will seek a fee for service and subcontract to reputable 
service providers.  

  
• The development of a desktop GSM telephone product through third party contractors so that Voxson 

may realise the value of its remaining GSM engine inventories. The prototype model has been 
completed and is currently being marketed to generate sufficient sales orders to realise the remaining 
inventory on hand.  Voxson sees no other feasible approach to realize the value of this remaining 
inventory and the carrying value of this inventory is predicated on the successful implementation of this 
project.  At the date of this report, we have seen sufficient interest in this product to support this 
valuation basis.  

  
The termination of the GSM research and development business in March 2005 was critical to commercially 
position Voxson with sufficient resources to meet its GSM business obligations and to enable the business 
transformation necessary to build a new business operation around its low growth but long standing audio 
business. 
  
The consumer electronics business 
Your Company has been operating in the consumer electronics business for many years, which was Voxson’s 
primary business focus prior to its entry into the GSM industry in the last decade.  Indeed, the operating profits 
generated by this business unit have underpinned the losses sustained in the GSM business operation in the past 
few years. 
  
The business model requires Voxson to source and market Chinese manufactured consumer electronics products 
to Australia’s major retailers and Voxson enjoys some important relationships with Chinese consumer 
electronics manufacturers.    
 
The Company is now focused on this area as its principal business activity. 
  
Patent exploitation 
Voxson owns two portfolios of patents, VOX 1 and VOX 2 which may be valuable.  In the 2005 financial year, 
Voxson sought expressions of interest from international GSM and patent exploitation entities to mutually 
exploit these patents and negotiations continue at the date of this report to secure an exploitation partner. 
  
The results for the 2005 financial year 
In the 2005 financial year, your Company has reported a net loss of $0.38 million, which is a significant 
improvement on the loss reported last year of $6.17 million. 
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This operating result substantially benefited from favourable non-recurring and prior period adjustments 
including: 
  

• A write-back of an accrual for intellectual property rights of $544k which are not considered necessary 
based on prior experience and the majority of sales having been made in China, where intellectual 
property rights are not legally recognised; and  

  
• The recognition of revenue of $543k, previously deferred on a disputed GSM contract with VK 

Corporation of Korea that was settled after balance date.  
  
The Company's underlying trading result this year was a loss of $1.28 million as against the previous year 
trading loss of $4.79 million. The improved trading performance primarily reflected the  results from the closure 
of the GSM research and development business and the consequence of other necessary cost saving initiatives, 
including reduced executive remuneration and directors' fees and a relocation to other office premises. 
  
The future 
Looking forward, Voxson has two business operations upon which its future now rests: 
  

• The consumer electronics business, in which Voxson now intends to increase its activities, limited only 
by available trade finance and market demand for the products. 

   
•  The realisation of value from Voxson's VOX 1 and VOX 2 patents.  

 
The coming financial year will be critical for Voxson, with its challenges being to: 
  

• Successfully exploit its VOX 1 and VOX 2 patents, the potential value of which has not been able to be 
identified through early negotiations with international GSM and patent exploitation entities to date.  

• Build up the Voxson audio trading business.  
  

• Clear the 425 and 430 GSM module inventories through the development and sale of the GSM desktop 
product.  

  
The limited financial resources available to the Company will also continue to focus the Board and management 
on securing immediate consumer electronics sales opportunities as the market builds into the Christmas trading 
peak, so that Voxson can generate sufficient funds to invest in further initiatives in 2006. 
  
Major shareholders support 
Lucas Longginou, Andrew Longginou and Nicholas Longginou, who in total constitute a significant 
shareholding in the Company, have confirmed their continuing commitment to working to achieve value for all 
Voxson shareholders. These major shareholders have provided written confirmation that they will support the 
Company with standby funding arrangements up to $500,000.  The Board has also been further assured that they 
remain committed to Voxson's continued operations.  
  
Going concern 
Shareholders will note that the financial accounts retain an emphasis of matter statement on the Company’s 
capacity to sustain its operations.  The Board continues to monitor the Company’s financial position on a regular 
basis and, with the closure of the GSM research and development business and the reduction in corporate 
overheads, the directors continue to progress matters to clear GSM inventory and to realise the opportunities now 
presented by the consumer electronics market.  Time will tell if the Company is able to successfully exploit this 
market. 
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VOXSON LIMITED 
CEO’s Report  
 
Dear Shareholder, 
  
A refocus on audio in 2005/06 
As the Chairman has explained, your Company made a significant decision during the 2004/2005 year, when it 
closed the GSM Research and Development Division due to continued unsustainable losses. 
  
The benefits from this decision are already visible in reduced fixed overhead costs and a re-focus of resources on 
the profitable consumer electronics business. Some of the products which are being marketed by your Company 
include a wide range of portable DVD players, MP3/MP4 players, GPS navigation units, Digital TV receivers, 
LCD TVs and GSM phones (FWT/Mobiles). 
  
The Company has managed to achieve a substantial improvement in operating results this year which is a 
significant improvement on last year’s reported loss of $6.17 million.  This result benefited from favourable non-
recurring and prior period related financial adjustments. 
  
Management remains fully committed to delivering a profitable outcome in the next financial year. Your 
Company has many years of experience in the consumer electronics industry, along with the long established 
relationships with overseas product manufacturers which continue to offer Voxson favourable trading 
conditions.  Voxson is now working on the successful exploitation of these relationships in the current year. 
  
Financial performance in 2004/05 
Revenue 
Revenue performance reported for the full year ended 30 June 2005 is A$13,893k, which is down on last year’s 
revenue of A$20,415k due primarily to reduced GSM based revenues. 
  
Expenses 
The Company has reviewed its operating expenses following the closure of its GSM research and development 
operations, with the following items highlighting the major contributors to this overall expense reduction 
performance, being: 

  
• Lower personnel costs (GSM closure) - $1,500k.  

  
• Lower third party maintenance costs - $250k.  

  
Continuing cost savings are also being achieved from substantially reduced executive remuneration and 
Directors' fees. 
 
Cash 
Cash remains closely controlled and monitored. 
  
Trade receivables 
Post balance date, the Company has collected 85% of its customer debts and expects to collect all other 
remaining debts. During the year, no bad debts were written off. 
  
Inventory 
The inventory carrying values have been reviewed and no further inventory write-downs are required, based on 
the current plan to realise the remaining 425 and 430 GSM engines in a desktop GSM product to be 
manufactured against firm orders by a third party in China. The GSM fixed wireless technology (FWT) desktop 
product is part of Voxson’s GSM asset realization program. 
  
Fixed wireless technology allows the user to connect standard telephones, facsimile machines and computers to 
wireless networks, providing quick access to high quality, reliable and cost-effective telephone service. Voxson 
products connect to standard cellular and PCS communications networks and thus no specialized infrastructure is 
required to support the product. 
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VOXSON LIMITED 
Directors’ Report 
 
Your directors submit their report for the year ended 30 June 2005. 
 
DIRECTORS 
The names and details of the Company’s directors in office during the financial year and until the date of this 
report are as follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated. 
 

Names and 
qualifications 

Experience   Special 
Responsibilities 

 
R.K. Weekes 
(B Com, DBA, CA, 
Dip Ed, FAICD) 

 
Ray Weekes has had extensive experience as Chief 
Executive Officer and Managing Director of companies 
including Rothmans Holdings Ltd and Castlemaine Perkins 
Ltd.  He is Chairman of the Brisbane Institute, Chairman of 
the CEO Institute in Queensland, a member of the Royal 
Children’s Hospital Foundation Board and an advisor to 
various companies. He is CEO-in-residence/Adjunct 
Professor at the Queensland University of Technology.   
 
During the past three years, Mr Weekes has also served as 
a director of Breakfree Limited. 
 

 
Non Executive 

Chairman 
 

L. Longginou 
 

Lucas Longginou is a founding shareholder of the Voxson 
Group. He has over thirty years experience in the design, 
manufacture and sale of consumer electrical products 
including the last thirteen years in cellular telephones. 
 
During the past three years, Mr Longginou has not served 
as a director of any other listed company. 
 
 

Deputy Chairman 

Prof. M. Moody 
(BE, MEngSc, BA, 
PhD) 
 

Professor Miles Moody is presently Professor of Electrical 
Engineering at the Queensland University of Technology 
and former Head of School. He was the inaugural Director 
of the Space Industry Development Centre for Satellite 
Navigation and is the current Queensland Node Manager 
for the Co-operative Research Centre for Satellite Systems. 
 
During the past three years, Prof Moody has not served as a 
director of any other listed company. 
   

Member of Audit 
Committee 

S.E. Lonie 
(BCom, MBA, CA, 
CMC, FAICD) 

Stephen is a former Partner with the professional services 
firm KPMG and now operates his own professional 
services practice.  
 
During the past three years, Mr Lonie has also served as a 
director of the following listed companies: 

• Peppercorn Management Group Ltd. 
• Charter Pacific Corporation Ltd . 

 

Chairman of Audit 
Committee  

 

 

6  



VOXSON LIMITED 
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COMPANY SECRETARY 
The name and details of the company’s secretary in office during the financial year and until the date of his 
resignation on 12 August 2005 is as follows. The company secretary was in office for this entire period. 
 

Name and 
qualifications 

Experience   Special 
Responsibilities 

 
David Lazzarini 
(B.Sc., B.Bus., 
CPA) 
 
 
 
Andrew Longginou 
 

 
David Lazzarini has been the company secretary of Voxson 
Ltd for 2 years until his resignation on 12 August 2005. He 
has had 24 years of commercial and financial experience 
within public companies, including GWA Limited and is a 
Certified Practicing Accountant. 
 
Andrew Longginou is the current Chief Executive Officer 
and a founding shareholder of the Voxson Group. 

 
Chief Financial Officer 
(Resigned 12 August 

2005) 
 
 
 

Chief Executive 
Officer 

(Appointed 12 August 
2005) 

 
 
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 
At the date of this report, relevant interests of the directors in the shares, options or other instruments of the 
company and related bodies corporate are: 
 

 
Name 

Ordinary Shares 
(Fully Paid) 

Options over 
Ordinary Shares 

L. Longginou 23,642,834  - 
M. Moody 140,000  400,000 
R.K. Weekes -  500,000 
S.E. Lonie -  - 

 
DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS 
The numbers of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and 
the numbers of meetings attended by each director were as follows: 
 

 
 
Name 

Monthly 
Directors’ 
Meetings 

Special 
Directors’ 
Meetings * 

Meetings of 
Audit 

Committee 
Number of meetings held: 12 5 2 
    
Number of meetings attended:    
R.K. Weekes 12 5 2 
L. Longginou 12 4 - 
M. Moody 11 4 2 
S.E. Lonie 12 5 2 

 
* The Special Directors’ meetings are being held regularly to closely monitor the Company’s short term business 
plan implementation and to assess the Company’s cash flow and its ability to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable. 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
As at the date of this report, the Company has an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a 
Nomination Committee of the Board of directors.  Due to the size of the Board, the entire Board sits as the 
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. 
 
NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
The principal activity of the consolidated entity during the year was the research and development of wireless 
GSM and GPRS telecommunications technology and the commercial exploitation of that technology. The 
Company, on 12 April 2005, ceased further direct investment including product development, in its GSM 
technology business due to unsustainable ongoing losses in this division. 
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Directors’ Report 
 
 
Whilst the GSM business represented Voxson’s primary focus during the past five years, the Company has and 
will continue its audio business. The audio business continues to produce operating profits and has offset some 
of the losses in the GSM business. The Company is now focusing on the profitable growth of the audio business. 
 
Voxson owns two patent technology portfolios, which have been described as VOX 1 and VOX 2. The Company 
considers the VOX 2 patent to be an essential GSM technology, with intellectual property rights. The Company 
is currently pursuing the commercialisation of this patent to suitable parties to exploit its value. It is not possible 
to assess the value of this patent to Voxson at the reporting date but the Company will endeavour to realise its 
fair value for shareholders. 
 
The closure of the GSM research and development ends the vision that the Company represented to its 
shareholders when it floated in 1999. The Company now looks to generate value for shareholders through the 
exploitation of the VOX 2 patent and by focusing on profitably growing the Voxson audio business.  
 
CORPORATE STRUCTURE 
      

 Voxson Limited 
   
 100% 
    
 Voxson Holdings Pty Ltd 

   
 100% 
   
 Voxson Sales Pty Ltd 

 
 
OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW  
The summarised operating results are as follows: 
  2005  2004 
   $ $ 
Operating loss of the consolidated entity after income tax   (385,246) (6,165,834) 
 
The review of the results of the operations is discussed in detail in the report of the Chief Executive Officer. 
       
DIVIDENDS 
There were no dividends declared or paid in the financial year ended 30 June 2005 (30 June 2004: NIL). 
 
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS  
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the year other than as 
disclosed in the financial report. 
 
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE 
At the date of this report, there are no other matters or circumstances that have arisen since 30 June 2005 that 
have significantly affected or may significantly affect: 
 
(a) The operations in financial years subsequent to 30 June 2005, of the consolidated entity constituted by 

Voxson Limited and the entities it controls from time to time; or 
(b) The results of those operations; or 
(c) The state of affairs, in financial years subsequent to 30 June 2005, of that consolidated entity. 
 
LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS  
The Chairman’s Report contains an overview of the likely developments of the economic entity, which 
predominantly includes the marketing of branded consumer electronic products and commercial exploitation of 
the patents. 
 
Further information on likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of 
operations has not been included in this report due to the marked sensitive nature of this information. 
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VOXSON LIMITED 
Directors’ Report 
 
GOING CONCERN 
Shareholders will note that the financial accounts retain an emphasis of matter statement on the Company’s 
capacity to sustain its operations.  The Board continues to monitor the Company’s financial position on a regular 
basis and, with the closure of the GSM research and development business and the reduction in corporate 
overheads, the directors continue to progress matters to clear GSM inventory and to realise the opportunities now 
presented by the consumer electronics market.  Time will tell if the Company is able to successfully exploit this 
market. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE 
The Company is not aware of any particular or significant environmental regulation applicable to it. 
 
SHARE OPTIONS 
Details of options granted to directors or executives as part of their remuneration are set out in the section of this 
report headed Directors’ and Executives’ Remuneration. Details of shares and interests under option, or issued 
during or since the end of the financial year due to the exercise of an option, are set out in Note 17 of the 
financial statements and form part of this report. 
 
IDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 
An indemnity agreement has been executed by the Company and each of the Directors, agreeing to indemnify 
the Director against any liability incurred directly or indirectly as an officer of the Company, unless the liability 
arises out of conduct on the part of the director which: 
 

• Involves a lack of good faith; or 
• Is contrary to the Company’s express instructions. 

 
There is no monetary limit to the extent of the Directors’ indemnity. 
 
During the financial year, Voxson Limited insured Directors and executives of the Company and related bodies 
corporate. Due to the terms and conditions of the insurance arrangements, disclosure of the nature of the 
insurance and the premium are excluded. 
 
REMUNERATION REPORT 
This report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for Directors and executives of Voxson Limited (the 
Company). 
 
Remuneration philosophy 
The performance of the Company depends upon the quality of its Directors and executives. To prosper, the 
Company must attract, motivate and retain highly skilled Directors and executives. 
 
To this end, the company embodies the following principles in its remuneration framework: 
 

• Provide competitive rewards to attract high calibre executives; 
• Link executive rewards to shareholder value; 
• Significant portion of executive remuneration ‘at risk’, dependent upon meeting pre-determined 

performance benchmarks; and 
• Establish appropriate, demanding performance hurdles in relation to variable executive remuneration; 
• Recognise cost pressures by reducing fees and remuneration for Directors and senior management. 

 
Remuneration committee 
The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for determining and 
reviewing compensation arrangements for the Directors, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the senior 
management team. 
 
The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration of 
Directors and senior managers on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with 
the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board and 
executive team. 
 
Remuneration structure 
In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive Director and senior 
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manager remuneration is separate and distinct. 
 
Non-executive director remuneration 
 
Objective 
The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level which provides the Company with the ability to attract 
and retain Directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost which is acceptable to shareholders. 
 
Structure 
The Constitution and the ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive Directors 
shall be determined from time to time by a general meeting. An amount not exceeding the amount determined is 
then divided between the Directors as agreed.  
 
The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the manner in which it is 
apportioned amongst directors is reviewed annually. The Board considers advice from external consultants as 
well as the fees paid to non-executive Directors of comparable companies when undertaking the annual review 
process. 
 
Each Director receives a fee for being a Director of the company. An additional fee may also be paid for each 
board committee on which a Director sits. The payment of additional fees for serving on a committee recognises 
the additional time commitment required by Directors who serve on one or more sub-committees. 
 
Non-executive Directors have long been encouraged by the Board to hold shares in the company (purchased by 
the Director on market). It is considered good governance for Directors to have a stake in the Company whose 
board he or she sits. The non-executive Directors of the Company can participate in the Executive Share Option 
Plan. 
 
The remuneration of non-executive Directors for the period ending 30 June 2005 is detailed in Table 1 on page 
10 of this report. 
 
Senior executive and executive director remuneration 
 
Objective 
The Company aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their position 
and responsibilities within the Company and so as to: 
 

• Reward executives for company, business unit and individual performance against targets set by 
reference to appropriate benchmarks; 

• Align the interests of executives with those of shareholders; 
• Link reward with the strategic goals and performance of the company; and 
• Ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards. 

 
Structure 
In determining the level and make-up of executive remuneration, the Remuneration Committee obtained 
information detailing market levels of remuneration for comparable executive roles prior to the Committee 
making its recommendation to the Board. 
 
It is the Remuneration Committee’s policy that employment contracts are only entered into with senior executive 
management. Details of these contracts have not been provided due to the market sensitive nature of this 
information. 
 
Remuneration consists of the following key elements: 
 

• Fixed Remuneration; and 
• Variable Remuneration. 

 
The proportion of fixed remuneration and variable remuneration (potential short term incentives) is established 
for each senior manager by the Remuneration Committee. 
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Fixed Remuneration 
 
Objective 
The level of fixed remuneration is set so as to provide a base level of remuneration which is both appropriate to 
the position and is competitive in the market. 
 
Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and the process consists of a review 
of companywide, business unit and individual performance, relevant comparative remuneration in the market 
and internal and, where appropriate, external advice on policies and practices. 
Structure  
Senior managers are given the opportunity to receive their fixed (primary) remuneration in a variety of forms 
including cash and fringe benefits such as motor vehicles and expense payment plans. It is intended that the 
manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost for the Company.  
 
The fixed remuneration component of the 4 most highly remunerated senior managers is detailed in Table 1 
below.  
 
Variable Remuneration — Short Term Incentive (STI) 
 
Objective  
The objective of the STI program is to link the achievement of the Company’s operational targets with the 
remuneration received by the executives charged with meeting those targets. The total potential STI available is 
set at a level so as to provide sufficient incentive to the senior manager to achieve the operational targets and 
such that the cost to the Company is reasonable in the circumstances.  
 
Structure  
Actual STI payments granted to each senior manager depend on the extent to which specific operating targets set 
at the beginning of the financial year are met. The operational targets consist of a number of Key Performance  
Indicators (KPIs) covering both financial and non-financial measures of performance. Typically included are 
measures such as contribution to net profit after tax, customer service, risk management, product management, 
and leadership/team contribution. The Company has predetermined benchmarks which must be met in order to 
trigger payments under the short term incentive scheme.  
 
On an annual basis, after consideration of performance against KPIs, an overall performance rating for the 
Company and each individual business unit is approved by the Remuneration Committee. The individual 
performance of each executive is also rated and all three ratings are taken into account when determining the 
amount, if any, of the short term incentive pool is allocated to each executive.  
 
The aggregate of annual STI payments available for executives across the Company is subject to the approval of 
the Remuneration Committee. Payments made are usually delivered as a cash bonus.  
 
Table 1: Details of remuneration provided to Directors and executives for the financial year are as 
follows: 
 

 Salary 
 

$ 

Fees 
 

$ 

Bonus 
 
$ 

Super- 
annuation 

$ 

Options     
Granted ** 

$ 

Annual 
Total 

$ 

Options 
Granted 

Directors        

R.K. Weekes - 58,750 - 5,288 - 64,038 - 
L. Longginou 164,574 - - 10,981 - 175,555 - 
M. Moody - 36,250 - 3,263 - 39,513 - 
S.E. Lonie - 36,250 - 3,263 - 39,513 - 
 
Executives 

       

A. Longginou 201,948 - - 10,981 - 212,929 - 
D. Lazzarini 173,614 - - 10,981 8,746 193,341 - 
S. Button  189,574 - - 10,981 - 200,555 - 
N. Longginou 155,198 - 20,000 10,981 - 186,179 - 

 
** External Options Valuation 
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Options granted as part of remuneration have been valued using the Black Scholes option price model, which 
takes into account factors such as the option exercise price, the current level and volatility of the underlying 
share price and the time to maturity of the option. The options have been valued using a volatility factor of 80% 
that was determined after a review of the trading of Voxson shares relative to a basket of option trading stocks.  
 
Details of the option holdings of the above Directors and executives are set out on Note 21 to the Financial 
Statements.  
 
The resulting pro rata fair values per option for those options vesting after 1 July 2005 are: 
 
Number of options Grant date  Vesting date  Fair Value 
500,000   21 October 2003  21 October 2003        $0.09 
400,000   21 October 2003  21 October 2003        $0.08 
200,000   20 October 2003  31 December 2004        $0.05 
200,000   20 October 2003  31 December 2005       $0.05 
 
COMPANY PERFORMANCE 

Executive Position 
Term Of Notice Termination Employment 

Copyright Yahoo 

SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

Contract Period Condition(1) Status 
ew Longgino ecutive Offi o fixed term 3 Months None n Going

Lucas Longginou Executive Director  No fixed term 3 Months None On Going 
Nicholas Longginou GM Consumer Electronics  No fixed term 3 Months None On Going 
David Lazzarini (1) Chief Financial Officer  No fixed term 3 Months 3 Weeks Re 05signed12/8/
Simon Button    (1) Chief Technical Officer  No fixed term 3 Months 26 Weeks Resigned 30/6/05
 

Andr u Chief Ex cer  N O  

(1) The termination condition is the number of weeks specified under the reported    

 
MPLOYEES 

ployed 16 employees as at 30 June 2005 (2004: 35 employees). 

OUNDING 
ained in this report and in the financial statements have been rest whole 

employment agreement.  

E
The Company em
 
R
The amounts cont  rounded to the nea
dollar. 
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The Company is committed to implementing the highest standards of corporate governance. In determining what 

d involve, the Company has turned to the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) 
ice 

e of the 
SX guidelines as outlined in the following section.  

ices recommended by the 
ouncil, the Company is either working towards compliance or does not consider that the practices are 

 operations. 

. Board of Directors 

.1 Role of the Board 

he Board’s role is to govern the Company rather than to manage it. In governing the Company, the Directors 
e best interests of the Company as a whole. It is the role of senior management to manage the 

n accordance with the direction and delegations of the Board and the responsibility of the Board to 
versee the activities of management in carrying out those delegated duties.  

 carrying out its governance role, the main tasks of the Board are to agree corporate strategy and plans and to 
rive the performance of the Company in line with strategy. The Board must also ensure that the Company 
omplies with all of its contractual, statutory and any other legal obligations, including the requirements of any 

ody. The Board has the final responsibility for the successful operations of the Company.  

o assist the Board to carry out its functions, it is in the process of developing a Code of Conduct to guide the 
the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and other key executives in the performance 

1.2 Composition of the Board 
 
To add value to the Company, the Board has been formed so that it has effective composition, size and 
commitment to adequately discharge its responsibilities and duties. The names of the Directors and their 
qualifications and experience are stated on page 5 along with the term of office held by each of the Directors. 
Directors are appointed based on the specific governance skills required by the Company and on the 
independence of their decision-making and judgment.  
 
The Company recognises the importance of Non-Executive Directors and the external perspective and advice 
that Non-Executive Directors can offer. Mr Ray Weekes, Mr Miles Moody and Mr Stephen Lonie are all Non-
Executive Directors. In addition to being Non-Executive Directors, Mr Ray Weekes as Chairman and both Mr 
Miles Moody and Mr Stephen Lonie, as members of the Audit Committee, also meet the following criteria for 
independence adopted by the Company.  
 
An Independent Director is a Non-Executive Director who: 
 

1. Is not a substantial shareholder of the Company or an officer of, or otherwise associated directly with, 
a substantial shareholder of the Company; 

2. Within the last three years has not been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or 
another group member, or been a Director after ceasing to hold any such employment; 

3. Within the last three years has not been a principal of a material professional adviser or a material 
consultant to the Company or another group member, or an employee materially associated with the 
service provided; 

4. Is not a material supplier or customer of the Company or another group member, or an officer of or 
otherwise associated directly or indirectly with a material supplier or customer; 

5. Has no material contractual relationship with the Company or other group member other than as a 
Director of the Company;  

6. Has not served on the Board for a period which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially 
interfere with the Director’s ability to act in the best interests of the Company; and 

7. Is free from any interest and any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be 
perceived to, materially interfere with the Director’s ability to act in the best interests of the 
Company. 

those high standards shoul
Corporate Governance Council’s Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Pract
Recommendations. The Company is pleased to advise that its practices are largely consistent with thos
A
 
Where the Company’s corporate governance practices do not correlate with the pract
C
appropriate for the Company due to the size of Company
 
1
 
1
 
T
must act in th
Company i
o
 
In
d
c
regulatory b
 
T
Directors, 
of their roles.    
 

14  
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Corporate Governance 
 

 
Mr Lucas Longginou is an Executive Director of the Company, and is also a major shareholder of the Company 
and as such does not meet the Company’s criteria for independence. However, as the founder of the Company, 
his experience and knowledge of the Company makes his contribution to the Board such that it is, both valuable 
and appropriate for him to remain on the Board. 
 
1.3 Responsibilities of the Board 
 
In general, the Board is responsible for, and has the authority to determine, all matters relating to the policies, 

ractices, management and operations of the Company. It is required to do all things that may be necessary to be 
n jectives of the Company.  

out is general role of the Board, the principal functions and responsibilities of the Board 
clude the following.  

nd review the overall strategy and 
goals for the Company and ensuring that there are policies in place to govern the operation of the 

ppropriate 
communications policy and promoting participation at general meetings of the Company. 

tional performance of the Company. 
6. Company Finances:  approving funding facilities and ensuring assets including cash are properly 

ropriate expenditure in excess of that agreed in the annual budget and 
approving and monitoring acquisitions, divestitures and financial and other reporting. 

 and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s 
occupational health and safety systems to ensure the well-being of all employees. 

nsibilities are contained in the Board Charter, a copy of which will be 
laced on the Company’s website. 

.4 Board Policies 
 
1.4.1 C
Dire s m
 

D
ex
ac pany; and  
If
ne

 
If a Direct move a conflict of interest then the Director must, in accordance with the 
Cor io
about whic
 
 
 

p
done i order to carry out the ob
 
With  intending to limit th
in
 

1. Leadership of the Organisation:  overseeing the Company and establishing codes that reflect the 
values of the Company and guide the conduct of the Board, management and employees. 

2. Strategy Formulation:  working with senior management to set a

Company. 
3. Overseeing Planning Activities: overseeing the development of the Company’s strategic plan and 

approving that plan as well as the annual business plans and budgets. 
4. Shareholder Liaison:  ensuring effective communications with shareholders through an a

5. Monitoring, Compliance and Risk Management:  overseeing the Company’s risk management, 
compliance, control and accountability systems and monitoring and directing the financial and 
opera

managed, as well as app

7. Human Resources:  appointing, and, where appropriate, removing the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) as well as reviewing the performance of the CEO and monitoring 
the performance of senior management in their implementation of the Company’s strategy. 

8. Ensuring the Health, Safety and Well-Being of Employees:  in conjunction with the senior 
management team, developing, overseeing

9. Delegation of Authority:  delegating appropriate powers to the CEO to ensure the effective day-to-
day management of the Company and establishing and determining the powers and functions of the 
Committees of the Board. 

 
Full details of the Board’s role and respo
p
 
1

onflicts of Interest 
ctor ust: 

 isclose to the Board actual or potential conflicts of interest that may or might reasonably be thought to 
ist between the interests of the Director and the interests of any other parties in carrying out the 
tivities of the Com

  requested by the Board, within seven days or such further period as may be permitted, take such 
cessary and reasonable steps to remove any conflict of interest. 

or cannot or is unwilling to re
porat ns Act, absent himself or herself from the room when discussion and/or voting occurs on matters 

h the conflict relates.  
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1.4. mmitments 

 accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical standards, Directors and key executives of the 
pan formation received in the course of the exercise of their duties and 

ill not disclose non-public information except where disclosure is authorised or legally mandated. 

 person responsible for overseeing and coordinating 
isclosure of information to the ASX as well as communicating with the ASX. In accordance with the ASX 

1. Concerning the Company that a reasonable person would expect to have a material effect on the price 

2. in deciding 

 
Upon confirmation of receipt from the ASX, the Company will commence posting all information disclosed in 
acco ce
 
1.4. E
New Direc pany. This 
proc n
Informatio
 

D
su

 F s;  
D

 A
 G

D
re

 B sation including an 
ou

 A
 A tegic direction of the Company, including a copy of the current strategic 

plan and annual budget; 

and budgets. 

rder inuing improvement in Board performance, all Directors are encouraged to undergo 
ontinual professional development. Specifically, Directors are provided with the resources and training to 

 identified.  

.4.6 Independent Professional Advice 
The Boa
expense
 
1.4.
Related rector and the Company and will be 

ported in writing to each Board meeting. Unless there is an exemption under the Corporations Act from the 

2 Co
Each member of the Board is committed to spending sufficient time to enable them to carry out their duties as a 
Director of the Company. 
 
1.4.3 Confidentiality 
In
Com y have agreed to keep confidential, in
w
 
1.4.4 Continuous Disclosure  
The Board has designated the Company Secretary as the
d
Listing Rules, the Company immediately notifies the ASX of information: 
 

or value of the Company’s securities; and 
That would, or would be likely to, influence persons who commonly invest in securities 
whether to acquire or dispose of the Company’s securities. 

rdan  with this policy on the Company’s website in an area accessible by the public. 

5 ducation and Induction 
tors undergo an induction process in which they are given a full briefing on the Com

ess i cludes meetings with key executives, tours of the premises, an induction package and presentations. 
n conveyed to new Directors includes: 

 etails of the roles and responsibilities of a Director, with an outline of the qualities required to be a 
ccessful Director;  

ormal policies on Director appointment as well as conduct and contribution expectation
 etails of all relevant legal requirements; 

 copy of the Board Charter; 
uidelines on how the Board processes function; 

 etails of past, recent and likely future developments relating to the Board including anticipated 
gulatory changes; 
ackground information on and contact information for key people in the organi
tline of their roles and capabilities; 

n analysis of the Company;  
 synopsis of the current stra

 A copy of the Constitution of the Company; and 
 All current business plans 

 
In o  to achieve cont
c
address skills gaps where they are
 
1

rd collectively and each Director has the right to seek independent professional advice at the Company’s 
, to assist them to carry out their responsibilities.  

7 Related Party Transactions 
party transactions include any financial transaction between a Di

re
requirement to obtain shareholder approval for the related party transaction, the Board cannot approve the 
transaction.  
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1.4.8 Shareholder Communication 

effectively with shareholders through releases to the market through the ASX, the 

3. Making it easy for shareholders to participate in general meetings of the Company; and 
 al auditor to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer 

he Company also makes available a telephone number and email address for shareholders to make enquiries of 
the pa
 
1.4. T
The Comp employees and their associates may only 

ade in the Company’s securities during the four (4) weeks commencing immediately after each of the following 

 The release by the Company of its half-yearly results to the ASX;  
ny of its annual results to the ASX; and  

y not trade in the Company’s securities during the following 
blackout periods” commencing: 

 
 ease by the Company of its half-yearly results to the ASX and concluding after 

y of its annual results to the ASX and concluding after such 

 
In a ti
while in lished price sensitive information concerning the Company. Unpublished price 
sens e
reasonab ial effect on the price or value of the Company’s securities. 
 
Not o
confirma  in possession of any unpublished price sensitive information. The completion 
of any su  Company Secretary who in turn advises the ASX. 
 

.4.10 Performance Review/Evaluation 

.4.11 Attestations by CEO and CFO 
or CEO and the CFO made the attestations recommended by the ASX 

mmittee was formed by resolution of the Board on 23 February 2004. The following paragraphs 
re a summary of the role, composition and responsibilities of the Audit Committee. Further details are 
ontained in the Audit Committee’s Charter. 

The Company respects the rights of its shareholders and to facilitate the effective exercise of those rights the 
Company is committed to: 
 

1. Communicating 
Company’s website, information mailed to shareholders and the general meetings of the Company; 

2. Giving shareholders ready access to balanced and understandable information about the Company 
and corporate proposals;  

4. Requesting the extern
shareholder questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditor’s 
report.  

 
T

Com ny on their website.  

9 rading in Company Shares 
any has a Share Trading Policy under which Directors and 

tr
(“trading window”): 
 

 The release by the Compa
 The close of the general meeting of the Company.  

 
Directors and employees and their associates ma
“

60 days prior to the rel
such release; and  

 60 days prior to the release by the Compan
release. 

ddi on, consistent with the law, designated officers are prohibited from trading in the Company’s securities 
 the possession of unpub

itiv  information is information regarding the Company of which the market is not aware and that a 
le person would expect to have a mater

ice f an intention to trade must be given prior to trading in the Company’s securities as well as a 
tion that the person is not
ch trade by a Director must also be notified to the

1
Each year the Board conducts an evaluation of its performance as a whole. The Chairman also meets informally 
with each Director to discuss individual Board member performance.  
 
1
In acc dance with the Board’s policy, the 
Corporate Governance Council as to the Company’s financial condition prior to the Board signing this Annual 
Report. 
 
2. Board Committees 
 
2.1 Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Co
a
c
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2.1.1 Role  
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting, including 
overseeing the independence of the external auditors and risk management.  

2.1. C
The Audit n-
Exe e 
Stephen L y. All members can read and understand financial statements and are 
othe experience in 
fina
profiles on
 

he Audit Committee held two meetings throughout the year to complete the 2005 financial accounts. Details of 

eetings are also attended, by invitation, by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Financial Officer and 
ga  auditor. 

e reviews the audited annual and half-yearly financial statements and any reports, which 
ccompany published financial statements before submission to the Board and, if appropriate, recommends their 

app a
 
The d pointment of the external auditor, and in each year, 

views the appointment of the external auditor, their independence, the audit fee and any questions of 

he Audit Committee is also responsible for establishing policies on risk oversight and management. 
 
2.2 mmittee 
 
2.2.1 

s the whole Board only consists of four members, the Company does not have a separate Remuneration 

he responsibilities of the Board, as a whole acting as a Remuneration Committee, include setting policies for 

ng 
mmendations to the Board on any proposed changes and undertaking an annual review of the Chief 

g with the Chief Executive Officer goals for the coming year 

.2.3 Remuneration Policy 
n  Executive Remuneration Policies have been approved by resolution of 

pany is committed to remunerating its senior executives in a manner that is market competitive and 
onsistent with best practice, as well as supporting the interests of shareholders. Consequently, under the Senior 

remuneration of senior executive may be comprised of the following: 

mined from a review of the market and reflects core performance requirements 
and expectations; 

scheme; and 
 Statutory superannuation.  

 
2 omposition 

 Committee consists of two members. Members are appointed by the Board from amongst the No
cutiv Directors, all of whom are also independent. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr 

onie and Mr Miles Mood
rwise financially literate. Mr Stephen Lonie, the Chairman, is a qualified accountant with 
ncial and accounting matters. The details of the member’s qualifications may be found in their Director 

 page 5. 

T
attendance of the members of the Audit Committee are contained in the Directors Report on page 6. 
 
M
the en gement partner of the external
 
2.1.3 Responsibilities 
The Audit Committe
a

rov l to the Board.  

 Au it Committee also recommends to the Board the ap
re
resignation or dismissal. Given the size of the Company’s operation, no internal Auditor has been appointed. 
 
T

Remuneration Co

Role 
A
Committee because it would not be a more efficient mechanism than the full Board for focusing the Company on 
specific issues.  
 
2.2.2 Responsibilities 
T
senior executives remuneration, setting the terms and conditions of employment for the Chief Executive Officer, 
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s incentive schemes and superannuation 
arrangements, reviewing the remuneration of both Executive and Non-Executive Directors and maki
reco
Executive Officer’s performance, including, settin
and reviewing progress in achieving those goals. 
 
2
The No -Executive Director and Senior
the Board. 
 
The Com
c
Executive Remuneration Policy, the 
 

 Fixed salary that is deter

 A performance bonus designed to reward actual achievement by the individual of performance 
objectives and for materially improved Company performance; 

 Participation in the share and option 
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By remunerating senior executives through performance and long-term incentive plans, in addition to their fixed 

 remuneration, including both monetary and non-monetary components, for each 

.3 Nomination Committee 

s the whole Board only consists of four members, the Company does not have a Nomination Committee 

 nomination as Directors for review by the Board. The Nomination Committee also 
versees management succession plans, including the CEO and his/her direct reports and evaluates the Board’s 

irectors are appointed based on the specific governance skills required by the Company. Given the size of the 
rector with 

xperience in the Company’s industry, appropriate to the Company’s market. In addition, Directors should have 
: 

ng and financial management; and 

ny Code of Conduct 

 recognising the legitimate interests of stakeholders, the Company has adopted a 

signed to ensure the truthful and factual presentation of the 
ompany’s financial position and prepares and maintains its accounts fairly and accurately in accordance with 

and financial reporting standards. 

sponsibilities to Clients, Customers and Consumers 
ach employee has an obligation to use their best efforts to deal in a fair and responsible manner with each of the 

.3 Employment Practices 
The m
all level The Company does not tolerate the offering or acceptance of bribes or the misuse of 
Com n
 
3.4 
The m business fairly and to compete ethically and in accordance with relevant 
ompetition laws. The Company strives to deal fairly with the Company’s customers, suppliers, competitors and 

remuneration, the Company aims to align the interests of senior executives with those of shareholders and 
increase Company performance. 
 
Details of the amount of
Director and the four highest-paid (non-Director) Executives during the year are stated on page 10. 
 
The objective behind using this remuneration structure is to drive improved Company performance and thereby 
increase shareholder value, as well as aligning the interests of executives and shareholders, as well as aligning 
the cost structure with the capacity to pay. 
 
2
 
2.3.1 Role 
A
because it would not be a more efficient mechanism than the full Board for focusing the Company on relevant 
issues at times.  
 
2.3.2 Responsibilities 
The responsibilities of the Board as a whole acting as a Nomination Committee include devising criteria for 
Board membership, regularly reviewing the need for various skills and experience on the Board and identifying 
specific individuals for
o
performance and makes recommendations for the appointment and removal of Directors. 
 
2.3.3 Criteria for Selection of Directors 
D
Company and the business that it operates, the Company aims at all times to have at least one Di
e
the relevant blend of personal experience in
 

 Accounti
 CEO-level business experience. 

 
3. Compa
 
As part of its commitment to
Code of Conduct to guide compliance with legal and other obligations to legitimate stakeholders. These 
stakeholders include employees, clients, customers, government authorities, creditors and the community as 
whole. This Code addresses the following key areas: 
 
3.1 Responsibilities to Shareholders and the Financial Community Generally 
The Company complies with the spirit as well as the letter of all laws and regulations that govern shareholders’ 
rights. The Company has processes in place de
C
the generally accepted accounting 
 
3.2 Re
E
Company’s clients, customers and consumers. The Company, for its part, is committed to providing clients, 
customers and consumers with fair value.  
 
3

 Co pany endeavours to provide a safe workplace in which there is equal opportunity for all employees at 
s of the Company. 

pa y assets or resources. 

Obligations Relative to Fair Trading and Dealing 
 Co pany aims to conduct its 

c
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other employees and encourages its employees to behave appropriately and in line with this Code of Conduct.  
 
3.5 Responsibilities to the Community 

s part of the community the Company: 

al laws and 
regulations and encourages all employees to have regard for the environment when carrying out their 

he Company is committed to keeping private information from employees, customers and investors 
tected from uses other than those for which it was provided. The Company has a formal 

s of Interest 
mployees and Directors must avoid conflicts as well as the appearance of conflicts between personal interests 

any. 

on to the environment, 
orkplace practices, intellectual property and the giving of “gifts”, Company policy will at all times prevail. 

A
 

 Is committed to conducting its business in accordance with applicable environment

jobs; 
 Encourages all employees to engage in activities beneficial to their local community; and 
 Supports community charities. 

 
3.6 Responsibility to the Individual  
T
confidential and pro
privacy policy in place. 
 
3.7 Conflict
E
and the interests of the Comp
 
3.8 How the Company Complies with Legislation Affecting its Operations 
Within Australia, the Company strives to comply with the spirit and the letter of all legislation affecting its 
operations. Outside Australia, the Company abides by local laws in all countries in which it operates. Where 
those laws are not as stringent as the Company’s operating policies, particularly in relati
w
 
3.9 How the Company Monitors and Ensures Compliance with its Code 
The Board, management and all employees of the Company are committed to implementing this Code of 
Conduct and each individual is accountable for such compliance. Disciplinary measures may be imposed for 
violating the Code. 
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VOXSON LIMITED  
Statement of Financial Performance  
Year ended 30 June 2005 
 

           
  Notes 

CONSOLIDATED 
 

Voxson Limited 

  2005 2004 2005 2004 
 
     

Sales revenue 2 13,892,545 20,415,431 - - 

Cost of goods sold 

GROSS PROFIT  6,231,167 5,187,726 - - 

 $ $ $ $ 
 

3 (7,661,378) (15,227,705) - - 

Ot r revenues fro ina   2,498 

Distributi

Marketing exp - 

Administr

Research and 

Bo owing costs  3 (8,324) (12,297) - (49) 

Ot xp

LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 
BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

 (385,246) (6,165,834) (3,446,328) (31,473,024) 

he m ord ry activities 2 16,976 65,050 3,106 

on expenses  (266,901) (475,807) - - 

enses  (911,392) (1,728,636) - 

ative expenses  (3,061,532) (3,757,298) (1,791,325) (1,488,775) 

development expenses  (2,479,637) (3,653,025) - - 

rr

her  e enses 3 (c) 94,397 (1,791,547) (1,658,109) (29,986,698) 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE RELATING 
TO ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 

4 - - - - 

LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 
AF XPENSE 

 
 

(385,246) (6,165,834) (3,446,328) (31,473,024) 
TER INCOME TAX E

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO 
MEMBERS OF VOXSON LIMITED 

 
18 

 
(385,246) 

 
(6,165,834) 

 
(3,446,328) 

 
(31,473,024) 

      
TOTAL REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
VA DJUSTMENTS 
AT E TO MEMBERS OF 
VO MITED AND 
RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY 

  
 
 
 
 

- 

 
 
 
 
 

- 

 
 
 
 
 

- 

 
 
 
 
 

- 

LUATION A
BLTRIBUTA

XSON LI

TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY 
OTHER THAN THOSE RESULTING 
FR M TRANSACTIONS WITH 
OW  OWNERS 

 
 

 
 
 
 

(385,246) 

 
 
 
 

(6,165,834) 

 
 
 
 

(3,446,328) 

 
 
 
 

(31,473,024) 

O
NERS AS

      

Ba  share (cents per share) 31 (0.3) (5.6)   

Di  (cents per share) 31 (0.3) (5.6)   

sic loss per
luted loss per share
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VOXSON LIMITED  
Statement of Financial Position    
At 30 June 2005 
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 s CONSOLIDATED 
 

Voxson Limited 

  5 4 5 4 
  $ $ $ $ 

 ASSETS      

Cash assets 5 229,736 915,805 7,166 8,126 
6 9 1 - - 
7 9 4 - - 

Plant and equipment available for sale 10,29 146,101 - - - 
8 3 8 1 4 

T ASSETS  8 8 147,017 234,670 

Note

200 200 200 200

CURRENT

Receivables 968,80 141,39
Inventories 2,070,75 2,617,12

Other  202,27 409,04 139,85 226,54

TOTAL CURREN 3,617,67 4,083,36

NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

Receivables 9 - - 5 5 
- - 3,162,970 4,840,970 

ent ,29 92,365 763,582 - - 
 assets - 7 - 962,467 

-CURRENT ASSETS 5 9 5 2 

2,558,77 3,468,37
Investments in subsidiaries 11 
Plant and equipm
Other non-current

10
12 962,46

TOTAL NON  92,36 1,726,04 5,721,74 9,271,81

TOTAL ASSETS  3,710,043 5,809,417 5,868,762 9,506,482 

CURRENT LIABILITIES      

Payables  
Provisions 

13 1,410,07
865,38

2 8 1 3 
4 4 3 - - 

LITIES  2,275,456 3,975,571 202,711 394,103 

3,216,24
759,32

202,71 394,10
1

TOTAL CURRENT LIABI

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES      

Payables 
Provisions 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

15 - - 3,468,375 3,468,375 
16 364,723 378,737 - - 

 364,723 378,737 3,468,375 3,468,375 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  2,640,179 4,354,308 3,671,086 3,862,478 

NET ASSETS  1,069,864 1,455,109 2,197,676 5,644,004 

EQUITY       

Contributed equity  57,173,570 57,173,570 57,173,570 57,173,570 
 4,668,000 4,668,000 - - 
 (60,771,706) (60,386,461) (54,975,894) (51,529,566) 

TOTAL EQUITY  1,069,864 1,455,109 2,197,676 5,644,004 

17 
Reserves 18
Accumulated losses 18



VOXSON LIMITED  
Statement of Cash Flows    
Year ended 30 June 2005  
 
 

 Notes CONSOLIDATED 
 

Voxson Limited 

  200 200 2005 2004 
 $ $ $ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
IES 

     

m customers 11 22 - - 

(12, (23,514,294 89,365 (2,662) 

ved 

(

/(USED IN) 
NG ACTIVITIES (877,963 (1,295,982 (1

5 4 
   

ACTIVIT
Receipts fro  ,270,234 ,167,199 

Payments to suppliers and employees  156,849) ) 

Interest recei 2 16,976 63,410 - 858 

Borrowing costs 3 (8,324) (12,297) - 49) 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATI 26 ) ) 89,365 ,853) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

     

Proceeds from sale of plant and 434,06 - 

Purchase of plant and equipment  (63,576) (91,333) - - 
re licenses (

/(USED IN) 
ING ACTIVITIES 

 
(9

 

equipment 
 7 - - 

Purchase of softwa  (90,325) (129,244) 90,325) - 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM
INVEST

  
280,166 

 
(220,577) 0,325) - 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING   
ACTIVITIES 

   

Repayments of borrowings  - ) 

NET CAS
FINANC

     

NET INCREASE/(DECREA
CASH HELD

SE) IN 
 

 
(597,797) 

 
(1,516,559) 

 
(960) 

 
(1,853) 

 

Add opening cash brought forward 
ange rate changes on cash 

 CASH CARRIED 
RD 5, 6 229,736 915,805 7,166 8,126 

 915,805 2,442,172 8,126 9,979 

Effects of exch  (88,272) (9,808) - - 

CLOSING
FORWA  2

Proceeds from borrowings  - 427,000 - - 
(427,000 - - 

H FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) 
ING ACTIVITIES - - - - 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
30 June 2005 
 
1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

(a) Basis of accounting 
The financial report is a general-purpos nancial report as bee ared in ance w e 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 including applicable Accountin andards. her mandat y 

 (U e t Issues Group C nsensus Views) have also n compl d 

as been prepared in accordanc istor nvention. 

(b) Going concern 
 financial report has been epared on g conce s, which contemplate e 

 normal audio business activ s and the on of d settlemen f liabili n 
the ordinary course of business. 

y and the cons  ent oncer ende e 
ty gene ting audio produ t sales and pr its and the reduction of t e 
ning o the financial rep rt, the Direct onsider t at these sal s 

uld be achieved and, as such, conclude that the going concern basis is appropriate, with 
ding support o  to $50 m the major areholders. owever, if e 

 and consolidated entity are unable to achieve their projected product sales, the Company and the 
be able to continue as g cerns. ly, the C pany and e 

e required to extinguish liab er tha dina  of business at 
n the financial report. This report does  include any adjustme s 
lassi of recorded asset amounts nor to the amounts and 

s that might be necessary should the C nd ted entity t 

unting policies 
 adopted are consist nt with those of prev

 statements are those of the consoli ted entity, co rising Vox n Limited (  
parent Company) and all entities that Voxson Limited controlled from time to time during the year and at 

tatements o ubsidiari uded ate the  Comp
rol ceases. Wher  loss of of a subsidiary, the 

consolidated financial statements include the results for the part of the reporting period during which the 
 

Subsidiary acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. 
 
The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, 
using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting 
policies that may exist. 
 
All inter company balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from intra-group 
transactions, have been eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be 
recovered. 
  
(e)  Foreign currencies 
Translation of foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies of entities within the consolidated entity are converted to local currency 
at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. 
   
Amounts payable to and by the entities within the consolidated entity that are outstanding at the reporting 
date and are denominated in foreign currencies have been converted to local currency using rates of 
exchange ruling at the end of the financial year. 

e fi , which h n prep  accord ith th
g St Ot or

professional reporting requirements
with. 
 

rg n o  bee ie

The financial report h e with the h ical cost co
 

The full-year pr  a goin rn basi s th
continuity of itie realisati assets an t o ties i

 
The ability of the Compan olidated ity to continue as going c ns is dep nt on th
Company and the consolidated enti
remaining GSM inventory. At sig
outcomes sho

ra
f 

c
o

of
ors c

h
eh

standby working capital fun
company

f up 0,000 fro  sh  H  th

consolidated entity may not oing con  According om th
consolidated entity may b ilities oth n in the or ry course
amounts different from those stated i
relating to the recoverability and c
classification of liabilitie

 not nt
fication 

ompany a consolida no
continue as going concerns. 
 
(c) Changes in acco
The accounting policies
 

e the ious year. 

(d)  Principles of consolidation 
The consolidated financial da mp so the

reporting date. 
 
Information from the financial s f s es is incl from the d parent any 
obtains control until such time as cont e there is control 

parent company has control.
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Notes to the Financial Statements  
30 June 2005 
 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

( continued) 
T
W
i
e differences are taken directly to the foreign currency translation reserve. 

         
W ally dependent on 
Voxson Limited, their financial reports are translated using the temporal method and any exchange 
d enc tly to the net profit. 

 
S
W cally hedged, exchange gains or losses on the hedging transaction arising 
u o the date of purchase or sale and costs, premiums and discounts relevant to the hedging transaction are 
i
d
 

 (f
C
 
F
in
 
B
 
( ivables 
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less a provision for any un-
c tab debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer 
p

 
 (

A
 
C ing each product to its present location and condition, are accounted for on a 
w ighted average basis. 

 
 (

N
a alue exceeds this recoverable amount, the asset is written down.  In 
determining recoverable amount, the expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present value 
u
 

 (j
C
A pment are carried at cost.  

 
 D
 D

 
M r depreciation periods are: 

 2005 2004 
•  to 15 years 5 to 15 years 
•

 

e)  Foreign currencies (
ranslation of financial reports of overseas operations 
here overseas operations are deemed self-sustaining, that is they are financially and operationally 

ndependent of Voxson Limited, their financial reports are translated using the current rate method and any 
xchange 

here overseas operations are deemed integrated, that is they are financially and operation

iffer es are taken direc

pecific hedges 
here a purchase or sale is specifi

p t
ncluded within the purchase or sale.  Exchange gains or losses arising on the hedge transaction after that 
ate are taken to the net profit.  

)  Cash and cash equivalents 
ash on hand and in banks and short-term deposits are stated at nominal value. 

or purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks, and money market 
vestments readily convertible to cash within two working days, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

ank overdrafts are carried at the principal amount. Interest is charged as an expense as it accrues. 

g)  Trade and other rece

ollec le debts. An estimate for doubtful 
robable. Bad debts are written-off as incurred. 

h)  Inventories 
ll inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

osts incurred in bring
e

i)  Recoverable amount 
on-current assets measured using the cost basis are not carried at an amount above their recoverable 

mount, and where a carrying v

sing a market determined risk adjusted discount rate. 

)  Plant and equipment 
ost and valuation 
ll classes of plant and equi

epreciation 
epreciation is provided on a straight line or diminishing value basis on all plant and equipment. 

ajo

 Plant and equipment 5
 Computer equipment      3 years  3 years 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

or finance leases based on the economic substance 

 
 

he minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all of the 

Leases which effectively transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 
 group are capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and disclosed as 

ciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets and the 
ase term. Minimum lease payments are allocated between interest expense and reduction of the lease 

lity lated using the interest rate implicit in the lease and recognised 

eyond any reasonable doubt, to exceed those costs. Where research and development costs are deferred, 
ised 

osts are reviewed at each balance date to determine the amount, if any, that is no longer recoverable and 
mo

 
 

 are that is integrated with developed intellectual property 
and which can provide a benefit for more than one financial year are deferred and amortised over the period 

t in any event, no longer than three years. The un-amortised balance is 
at future benefits are no longer 

obable. 
 
 fits 

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to the 
rting clude wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave and long service leave. 

enefits 

aid when the liability is settled.  All other employee 
enefit liabilities are measured at the present value of the estimated cash outflow to be made in respect of the 

ces up to the reporting date.  In determining the present value of future cash 
 yield as at the reporting date on national government bonds, which have terms to 

, are used. 
 

efits expenses and revenues arising in respect of the following categories are recognised 
s in 

spective categories: 
 

ve benefits; an
f employee be

 
are recognised against profits on a net basis in their respective categories 

  
 The value of the equity-based compensation scheme described in Note 17 is not being recognised as an 
employee benefits expense. 

(k)  Leases 
Leases are classified at their inception as either operating 
of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ownership. 

Operating leases 
T
risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis. 
 
Finance leases 

leased item to the
plant and equipment under lease. A lease liability of equal value is also recognised. 
 
Finance leases (continued) 
Capitalised lease assets are depre
le
liabi with the interest expense calcu
directly in net profit. 
 
(l)  Research and development 
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, except where future benefits are expected, 
b
such costs are amortised over future periods on a basis related to expected future benefits. Un-amort
c
any a unt identified is written off. 

(m)  Other non-current assets 
Costs associated with purchased third party softw

of the expected future benefits, bu
reviewed each balance date and charged to the net profit to the extent th
pr

(n)  Employee bene

repo  date.  These benefits in
 
Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave and any other employee b
expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts 
based on remuneration rates which are expected to be p
b
servi provided by employees 
outflows, the market
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability

Employee ben
against profits on a net basis in their respective categories are recognised against profits on a net basi
their re
 

• Wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits, annual leave, long service leave, sick leave 
and other lea d 

• Other types o nefits. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
(o)  Taxes 
Income taxes 
Tax-effect accounting is applied using the liability method whereby income tax is regarded as an expense and 

ting profit after allowing for permanent differences. To the extent timing 

isclosed as a future income tax benefit or a provision for deferred income tax. The net future income tax 
 tax losses and timing differences is not carried forward as an asset unless the benefit is 

n     
s 

nd payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 

 a m, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 

 
sh flows. 

 
itm sclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the 

ation 
n the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the consolidated entity. 

 
ed at the principal amount.  Interest, when charged by the lender, is 

  Interest-bearing liabilities 

 transaction costs arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction 

on 
Revenue is re nd 
the revenue ca b wing specific recognition criteria must also be met before 
revenue is rec ni

e of goods 
ntrol over product passes pursuant 

nforceable sales contract, and selling prices are known or can be reasonably estimated. 

is calculated on the accoun
differences occur between the time items are recognised in the financial statements and when items are taken 
into account in determining taxable income, the net related tax benefit or liability, calculated at current rates, 
is d
benefit relating to
virtually certain of being realised. 
 
Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

evenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except: R
 
• Where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxatio

authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or a
part of the expense item as applicable; and 

• Receivables a
 
The net mount of GST recoverable fro
receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority are classified as operating ca

Comm ents and contingencies are di
taxation authority. 
 
(p)  Payables 
Liabilities for trade creditors and other amounts are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consider
to be paid i

Payables to related parties are carri
recognised as an expense on an accrual basis. 
 
(q)
All loans are measured at the principal amount.  Interest is charged as an expense as it accrues. 
 
Finance lease liability is determined in accordance with the requirements of AASB 1008 “Leases”. 
 
(r)  Contributed equity 
Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the Company. 
 
Any
of the share proceeds received. 
 

Revenue recogniti(s) 
cognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity a
n e reliably measured. The follo

og sed: 
Sal
Sales are recognised when property passes to the purchaser, or physical co
to an e
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
(s)  Revenue recognition (continued)  

 services 

 
e 

 
assets has been attained. 

 
)  

Basic ea ts 
of servic rence share dividends, divided by the weighted average 

mber 

ivided 
tive potential shares, adjusted for any bonus 

nterest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that 
have been recognised as expenses; and 

on of potential ordinary shares. 

e 
ture sacrifice of economic benefits to other entities as a result of past transactions or other past events, it 

 made 

ased on sales 

)  Use of estimates 
 prep atements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

te of 
e financial statements and the reported results of operations during the reporting period. Actual results 

tual property rights royalties and write-down of the inventories. 

Rendering of services 
Services relate to the total product solution offered to handset manufacturers. Revenue earned from
is recognised using contract accounting. Where the contract outcome can be reliably measured, control of 
the right to be compensated for the services and the stage of completion can be reliably measured, revenue is
accounted for based on milestones as defined in the contracts. Where the contract outcome cannot b
reliably measured, revenue is recognised at completion of the contract only. 
 
Interest 
Control of a right to receive consideration for the provision of, or investment in, 

(t Earnings per share 
rnings per share (EPS) is calculated as net profit attributable to members, adjusted to exclude cos
ing equity (other than dividends) and prefe

nu of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element. 
 
Diluted EPS is calculated as net profit attributable to members, adjusted for the following items and d
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilu
element: 
• Costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividend; 
• The after tax effect of dividends and i

• Other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from 
the diluti

 
(u)  Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the economic entity has a legal, equitable or constructive obligation to mak
a fu
is probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required and a reliable estimate can be
of the amount of the obligation. 
 
A provision for warranty is recognised for all products under warranty at the reporting date, b
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and returns. 
 
(v
The aration of financial st
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the da
th
could differ from those estimates. Accounting estimates have been applied to calculate accruals for 
employee entitlements; intellec
 
(w)  Comparatives 
Where necessary, comparatives have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year 
disclosures.
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 Notes CONSOLIDATED 

 
Voxson Limited 

  2005 2004 2005 2004 
  $ $ $ $ 
2.  

Reve
Reve 661 - - 

Revenue from services  2,670,274 2,062,770 - - 

ota m operating activities  13,892,545 20,415,431 - - 

REVENUE FROM ORDINARY 
ACTIVITIES 

     

nues from operating activities      

nue from sale of goods  11,222,271 18,352,

T l revenues fro
Reve  nues from non-operating activities     

Interest      

  er pe  16,976 65,050 3,106 2,498 

Tota
- oth rsons/corporations 
l interest  16,976 65,050 3,106 2,498 

      

Total revenues from non-operating activities  16,976 65,050 3,106 2,498 

Total revenue from ordinary activities   13,909,521 20,480,481 3,106 2,498 

      
3. E ENS   

(a) Ex nses 
Cost of goods s 7,661,378 15,227,705 - - 

Total  go

XP ES AND LOSSES/(GAINS)    

pe      

old  

cost of ods sold  7,661,378 15,227,705 - - 

      

Depr iation of non-current assets       

  t an  456,261 417,150 - 39,331 

Tota

ec
 Plan d equipment 
l depreciation of non-current assets  456,261 417,150 - 39,331 

     

rtisation of non-current assets  
 

Amo      

   Purchased software  1,052,792 421,561 1,052,792 421,561 

Total amortisation of non-current assets  1,052,792 421,561 1,052,792 421,561 

Total depreciation and amortisation 
expe

  
1,509,053 

 
838,711 

 
1,052,792 

 
460,892 nses 

    

owing costs expensed    

nterest expense – third party  8,324 12,297 - 49 

l borrowing costs expensed  8,324 12,297 - 49 

Borr
I

Tota
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 04 
 $ 

tinued)  

(a) E ued)      

146,388 449,498 - 

 owned Group  
12 

  
(21,840,969) 

(1,678,000) (8,159,031) 

 

(b) Losses/(Gains)      

Net quipment (301,636) - - - 

rrency losses/(gains) 1 ( (19,891) 2) 

 

  

oss from ordinary activities before income tax expense includes the following specific reven  whose 
r ance of the entity:- 

Write back of IPR accrual  (544,303) (945,345) - - 

nses-GSM business  330,000 - (19,891) (18,982) 

 and equipment - GSM   - 

ventory obsolescence (216,017) 2,317,991  - 

499,784 - 499,7 - 

Wr  - 

 Notes CONSOLIDATED 
 

Voxson Limited 

  2005 2004 2005 20
  $ $ $
3.        EXPENSES AND LOSSES/(GAINS) (con

xpenses (contin
  

Bad and doubtful debts – trade debtors    - 

Provision for loans to wholly
entities 

 
- 

 
- - 

Write down of investment in subsidiary  - - 
 

 gain on disposal of plant and e  

Net foreign cu  78,171 30,597) (18,98
 

(c) Specific Items    

L   ues and expenses
disclosure is relevant in explaining the financial perfo m

Redundancy expe
Write down of plant
business 

158,000 - -

In   -

Write-down of purchased software   84 

ite-back of inventories  (582,000) - -
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 V

 2 200
 $ $ 

ncial       
 on the 

 

 

me tax (385,246) (6,165,83 (1,

Income tax calculated @ 30%  
 

(115,574) (1,849,750)
 

(1,033,898) (441,907)

Notes CONSOLIDATED 
 

oxson Limited 

 2005 2004 005 4 
 $ $ 

4. INCOME TAX         
 
(a) The income tax expense for the fina
year differs from the amount calculated

 

profit.  The differences are reconciled as 
follows:
Loss from ordinary activities before inco  4) (3,446,328) 473,024)

 

   

Tax effect of permanent differences:   

   Non-deductible expenses  

   Provision for loans to wholly owned Group 
entities 

 - - - -

 - - - -

- - - -

-

t differences (114,974) (1,847,773) (1,033,898) (441,907)

600 1,977 - -

   Research & development  
   Capital profit on sale of land and buildings  

   Other items (net)  - - - 

   Prior period adjustments  - - - -

Income tax expense/(benefit) adjusted for 
permanen

  

Benefit of tax losses of prior year recouped -

count as 
certain 

239,147
1,715,6 416,32 563,352

ure income tax benefit on timing  
differences not brought to account 

 

(124,173) 132,128
 

(617,575) (121,444)
 
Income tax expense for the year 

 
-  

-
 

- -

 - - - 

Income tax benefit not brought to ac
realisation is not virtually 

 

45
 

3 

Fut

(b) The Directors estimate that the potential 
future income tax benefit at reporting date in 
respect of tax losses not brought to account is 

 

16,749,613 16,480,465

 
 

1,294,571 878,248
 
This future income tax benefit will only be obtained if: 
 

(a) Future assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from 
the deductions for the losses to be realised; and 

(b) The conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation continue to be complied with; and 
(c) No changes in tax legislation adversely affect the ability in realising the benefit from the deductions for 

the losses. 
 
Tax consolidation 
Effective 1 July 2003, for the purposes of income taxation, Voxson Limited and its 100% owned subsidiaries 
formed a tax consolidation group. The head entity of the tax-consolidated group is Voxson Limited. 
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 Notes CONSOLIDATED 
 

Voxson Limited 

  2005  
 

C  

ash at bank and on hand  229,736 915,805 7,166 8,126

2004 2005 2004 
  $ $ $ $ 

5.  ASH   

C
 

6. RECEIVABLES  
Trade debt

  

ors  1,119,333 145,528 - -

 )

 968,809 141,391 -

Provision for doubtful debts (150,524 (4,137) -

 - 

 
Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and generally on 30-day terms. 

 
 5,425,779 5,227,81

 (4,120,096)

 
 
7. INVENTORIES    

Raw materials – net realisable value  

5 - -

) - -

2 - -

0 - -

- 

-Original cost 
Provision for stock obsolescence (4,301,243

 1,305,683 926,57 
At cost  - 516,00

 1,305,683 1,442,572 - 
 

- 

 

  

 

1,297,435  
 (956,095)

423,334 526,678  

Finished goods – net realisable value 
-Original cost 
Provision for stock obsolescence 

 1,379,429

(770,757) - -

  

 2

 
Total inventories at lower of cost and net 
realisable value 

  
  

  

2,070,759 2,617,124 - -

 
8.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS   

Pre -

Security 118,309 226,544 118,309 226,544

 

payments  83,964 182,504 21,542 

 deposits  

 202,273 409,048 139,851 226,544

At cost  341,742 647,874 - -

 765,076 1,174,55  
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 Not
es 

 

  

ES (NON CURRENT)  
p entities  54,39 55,309,344

rovision for loan write down  - - (51,840,969) (51,840,969)

 - - 2,558,775 3,468,375

CONSOLIDATED 
 

Voxson Limited

 2005 2004 2005 2004
  $ $ $ $ 

9. RECEIVABL  

Loans to wholly owned grou - - 9,744 

P

 

  

The loans to wholly owned group entities are interest free and re s and unding is av lable with 
o stated repayment term. These loans reflect the structure of the d th at all the trad g 

operations of the Group are conducted through a wholly owned subsidiary company. Repayment is expected to 
siness. 

 

IPMENT 
le (current)

n 
tal Plant and equipment available for sale 
rrent) 

payable a  when f ai
n entity an e fact th in

occur, if appropriate, over the longer term, in the ordinary course of bu
 
10. PLANT AND EQU  

Plant and equipment available for sa   

At cost 146,101 - - -

Accumulated depreciatio - - - -

To
(cu

- - -146,101

 

At cost 
Accum

 92,365 763,582 - -

  

Plant and equipment under lease 
At cost 172,605 172,605

Accumulated depreciation (172,605) (172,605) (172,605) (172,605)

- - -

- -

172,605 172,605  

 - 

Total plant and equipment (Non-current) 92,365 763,582 - -

Reconciliations 

Plant and eq    

Carrying am 63,582 ,088,799 - 39,331

63,576 91,933 - - 

 

Plant and equipment (Non-current)  

812,027 2,485,206 77,280 77,280

ulated depreciation (719,662) (1,721,624) (77,280) (77,280)

      

     

uipment   

ount at beginning  7 1  

Additions  

Disposals  (132,431) - - - 

Depreciation expense  (456,261) (417,150) - (39,331) 

  238,466 763,582 - - 

 
The plant and equipment available for sale relate to the GSM business as stated in Note 29. 
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 Notes CONSOL ATED Voxson Limited 

 2005 2004 2005 2004
 $ $ $ $ 

RIES  

bsidiary – 
unlisted 

 
25 - - 13,000,000 13,000,000

Provision for write down in investments  - - (9,837,030) (8,159,030)

 - - 3,162,970 4,840,970

ID
 

     
 

11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIA  

Investment in wholly owned su  

 

   

12.  OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS   

Purchased software  3,802,158 3,711,833 3,802,158 3,711,833

ccumulated amortisation  (3,802,158) (2,749,366) (3,802,158) (2,749,366)

  - 962,467 - 962,467

A

ABLES (CURRENT)  

Trade creditors 
Other cred

1,163,393 1 

D - 

  

 
 
13. PAY  

 1,389,545 202,71 392,901

itors  246,679 721,196 - 1,202

eferred revenue  - 1,105,507 -

 1,410,072 3,216,248 202,711 394,103
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20,000 - -

 for warranty claims 1 ) 26,85 89,8 -

23 818,53 669,4 -

 865,38 759,3 -

   
    
  $ $ $ $ 

14. PROVISIONS (CURRENT)   

Provision for legal expenses 
Provision

 - 

4(a 4 72 - 

Employee benefits 0 51 - 

 4 23 - 

   

(a) Provision for warranty claims 
All consumer electro
concluded based on cu

nic products are sold with a 2-month wa rin /20 an
rrent sales levels and current information about warranty claims that the provision was 

provision required. 

) Movements in provisions    
      

$ $ $ $ 
 

 at the beginning of the 
financial year 

 
80,000

Additional provision  20,000 - - -

Amounts utilised during the year  - (80,000) - (80,000)

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  20,000 - - -

1 rranty.  Du g the 2004 05 year, m agement 

adequate and no additional 
 

(b

  
Legal expenses  

Carrying amount
- 80,000

 
- 
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 Notes CONSOLIDATED Voxson Limited 

2005 2004 2005 2004 
 

ntinued  

 
  

14. PROVISIONS (CURRENT) co  

Warranty claims  
ng of the 

financial year 
dditional provision - 17,872 - -

Write-back in provision  (25,000) - - -

ounts utilised during the year  (38,018) - - -

-

 

Carrying amount at the beginni  
89,872 72,000

 
- -

A  

Am
Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  26,854 89,872 - 

 
    
      

 $ $ $ $ 
NT)  

ans from wholly-owned group entities  3,468,375 3,468,3

 

 

15.  PAYABLES (NON CURRE  

Lo - - 75

  

16. PROVISIONS (NON CURRENT) 
Employee bene

 

fits 23 364,72

 

3 378,737 - -

17.  CONTRIBUTED EQUITY  

 
 

  

(a) Issued and paid up capital 
Ordinary shares – fully paid 

    
57,173,570 57,173,570

 
57,173,570 57,173,570

   

  2005 2004 2005 2004

Number of ordinary shares 
    

110,384,287 110,384,287
 

110,384,287 110,384,287

 
(b) Terms and conditions of contributed equity 

Ordinary shares 
Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the 
Company, to participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of 
and amounts paid up on shares held. 
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Company. 
 

 
(c)  Movements in ordinary share capital of the Company 
 There was no movement in ordinary share capital of the Company during the year.  
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17.  CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (continued) 

are option plan 
ber 1999, the Company adopted an ployee Option Plan. Employees of the Company and 

 Non Ex tive Directors of the Company are eligible to participate 

 beginning of the financial period: 

1999 14/12/ 31 03 

 

 
   (d)  Employee sh

On 9 Novem  Em
any of its controlled entities along with
in the plan.  

ecu

 
Options held at the

 

Grant date 14/12/  1999 /03/20
Vesting date 30/06/2003 30/06/2004 01/04/2004 
Expire at 5pm on 30/09/2004 30/09/2005 01/04/2006  

36 0
0 0 

 
Options granted during the financial period
 
No options were granted during the financial period. 

ed or lapsed during the financial od: 
 
Grant date 14/12/1999 31/03/2003 

: 

 
Options forfeit  peri

Options Granted 733,3 500,000 1,300,0 0 
Exercise price $2.0 $2.00 $0.3

Vesting date 30/6/2 03 01/04/2004 0
Expire at 5pm on 30/9/2  01/04/2006 004
Options Granted 733,336 200,000 
Exercise price $2.0 $0.30 0 

o options were exercised du

)
Options held at the end of the financial period: 

Grant date 14/12/1999 31/03/2003 
Vesting date 30/06/2004 01/04/2004 
Expire at 5pm on 30/09/2005 01/04/2006 

 
Options exercised during the financial period: 
 
N ring the financial period. 
 

(d  Employee share option plan (continued) 

 

Options Granted 500,000 1,100,000 
Exercise Price $2.00 $0.30 

40  

Exercisable at year end 500,000 1,100,000 
 
At the end of the financial year a total of 1,600,000 options to take up ordinary shares in the capital of the 
Company have been granted to employees and are outstanding and exercisable.  The market price of 
Voxson Limited shares as at 30 June 2005 was $0.02. 
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O
 

21/10/2003 21/10/2003 21/10/2003 21/10/2003 

17.  CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (continued) 

(e) Other options 
ptions held at the beginning of the financial period: 

Grant date 
Vesting date 21/10/2003 21/10/2003 31/12/2004 31/12/2005 
Expiry date 29/07/2008 29/07/2008 31/12/2006 31/12/2007 
Options granted 500,000 20400,000 200,000 0,000 
Exercise price $0.09 $$0.105 $0.20 0.30 

ptions granted dur riod: 

ptions held l period: 

Grant date 21/10/2003 /10/2003 
Vesting date 21/10/2003 2  31/ 31/12/2005 1/10/2003 12/2004 
Expiry date 29/07/2008 29/ 8 31/1 12/2007 07/200 2/2006 31/

Options granted 

Exercisable at 
year end 500,000 400,000 200,000 200,000 

 
At 30 June 2005, there were 1,300,000 outstanding options over ordinary shares of which 1,100,000 are 

ble at year end. The market price of Voxson Limited share as at 30 June 2005 was $0.02. 
 
 
 

exercisa

 
O ing the financial pe
 
No options were granted during the financial period. 
 
Options forfeited or lapsed during the financial period: 
 
No options were forfeited during the financial period.  
 
O at the end of the financia
 

21/10/2003 21 21/10/2003 

Number of 500,000 400,000 200,000 200,000 

Exercise price $0.09 $0.105 $0.20 $0.30 
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 CONSOLIDATED 

 
Voxson Limited 

  2005 2004 2005 2004 
$ $ $ $ 

ND ACCUMULATED LOSSES   

4,668,000 4,668,000 - -

   

 

  
18.  RESERVES A

Capital profit reserve  

A losses (54,975,894) (51,529,566)

    
ccumulated  (60, 771,706) (60,386,461)

  
apital profit 
he capital profit re e is used to 
cumulate realis tal prof

 C
T serv
ac ed capi its 

 

alance at end of year  4,668,000 4,668,000 - -

 
ccumulated losses 

 

B

 
A
Movements in reserve   

alance at beginning of year  (60,386,461) (54,220,627) (51,529,566) (20,056,542)

imited 
(385,246) (6,165,834) (3,446,328) (31,473,024)

(60,771,706) (60,386,461) (54,975,894) (51,529,566)

B
Net loss attributable to members of Voxson  
L
Total available for appropriation  
Dividends provided for or paid  - - - -

alance at end of year  (60,771,706) (60,386,461) (54,975,894) (51,529,566)B
 
 
19. E E CO T  

Lease  comm  

(i) Fin  

There eases in 2005.  

(ii) O non-cancellable)  

Minim payments  

   not later than 1 year 110,000 383,044 - 383,044

-    ,726

- ver 5 years - - - -

- ggregate lease expenditure contracted for 
at balance date 110,000 1,707,770

 
- 1,707,770

XPENDITUR MMITMEN S 
 expenditure itments 
ance leases 
were no finance l

perating leases (
um lease 

-  
 later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - 1,324,726 - 1,324

o
a

Aggregate expenditure commitments comprise:  

Amounts not provided for  

-     rental commitments  110,000 1,707,770 - 1,707,770

   

 110,000 1,707,770 - 1,707,770
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19. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 

he Company, on 22 July 2005, relocated its princip l place nd accor
relating to the old premises was terminated and a new lease was established for the new premises. The new lease 

ngements reflect considerable cost savings to the Company. 

roup with regard to the Class Order relief. 
The  Voxson Ltd and Voxs  Sales Pty

 
20. ABILITIES  

operty rights 

The nd development operations in April 2005.  As a consequence, the 
Com tellectual property rights and has reduced its accrual to $0, based on 
the 

• The Company’s VOX 2 patent portfolio provides the capacity to offset any claims through counter 
claims based on infringements against th ompany’s VOX 2 patents. 

ustomer GSM product sales based on Voxson’s technology have been made in China, 
tellectual property rig ts are difficult to exploit successfully. 

Wh al property righ s m the e m
con ims and th y co  t
suc im is low. 

Ren

The ith its previo s landlord at Eagle Farm and has commenced legal 
pro lord based on the landlord’s br i r

joyment of the terms and conditions of the lease and further by frustrating the Company’s attempts to 
problems occasioned by the landlord’s failure to act.  The landlord has issued a counter claim.  The 

ident of its position. 

 its consolidated entities at 30 June 2005, have not issued any Letters of Credit (3  June 2004 

T a of business premises a dingly the lease 

arra
 
A Deed of Cross Guarantee has been granted within the G

 parties to the deed are on  Ltd 
 

CONTINGENT LI  
Intellectual pr

 Company closed its GSM research a
pany has reviewed its exposure to in

following reasons: 

e C

• The majority of c
a country where in h

ilst it is possible that intellectu t claim ay ensue in  following p riods, the Co pany 
siders that it is not possible to quantify such c
cessful cla

la e Compan nsiders that he likelihood of a 

tal dispute 

 Company terminated its lease w u
ceedings against the land eech of contract due to its fa lure to delive  

en
mitigate the 
Company has sought legal advice and is conf

Letters of Credit 

The Company and 0
$Nil).  
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21.   DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES  
(a) Details of specified Directors and specified executives 
(i) Specified directors     

tive) continuing. 
dy Director (non-executive) continuing. 

Director (non-executive) co
    

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary  

S. Butto

N. Longginou Consumer Electronics Manager. 

rectors and specified executives  
(i) Remuneration policy 

ve Directors are responsible for determining individual Directors’ fees and the remuneration of 
sary.  
ing and 

erence to employment market conditions and 
the individual staff member’s performance. For executive Directors and executive officers, remuneration 

mprise salary and superannuation. Directors and officers (excluding Founding 

R.K. Weekes Chairman (non-executive) continuing. 

L. Longginou Deputy Chairman (execu
M. Moo
S.E. Lonie ntinuing. 
 
(ii) Specified executives  
A. Longginou Chief Executive Officer. 
D. Lazzarini 

(resigned 12 August 2005). 
n Chief Technical Officer 

(resigned 30 June 2005). 

  
(b) Remuneration of specified Di

The Non Executi
the Chief Executive Officer, having reference to external remuneration market information where neces
The Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with the entire Board of Directors, is responsible for review
determining the compensation arrangements of the executive team.  
 
Remuneration arrangements are assessed on a periodic basis by ref

packages generally co
Shareholders) are also provided with longer-term incentives through the Company share option plan, which acts 
to align Directors’ and executives’ actions with shareholders’ interests. 
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21. DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES (continued)  

 
Post Employment Equity Total 

Fees Bonus annuation 
Termination 

payments Options  

ors       
       
2005 58,750 - 64,038 
2004 59,580 - 45,000 109,942 

        
2005 164,574 - - 175,555 
2004 180,013 - 9,948 - - 189,961 

. Moody        
36,250 - 3,263 - - 39,513 

2004 40,000 - 32,000 75,600 
       
2005 36,250 - 39,513 

 2004 31,562 - - 34,403 
    

eration: specified Directors     
 2005 295,824 - - 318,619 
 2004 * 329,488 - 77,000 429,889 

      
ecified executives       

. Longginou        
 - - 212,929 

216,337 - 9,948 - - 226,285 
 

,341 
 

    
2005 189,574 - 10,981 - - 200,555 

5 
 

186,179 
173,273 

 
   

 2005 720,334 20,000 43,924 - 8,746 793,004 
 2004 * 1,044,898 - 54,412 287,500 20,243 1,407,053 
 
* Group totals in respect of 2004 do not necessarily equal the sums of amounts disclosed for 2004 for individuals 
specified in 2005, as different individuals were specified in 2004.  
 

(c) Shareholdings of specified Directors and specified executives 
 
Shares held in Voxson Limited 
(number) 

Balance 
1 July 04 

Granted as 
remuner-

ation 

On Exercise 
of Options 

Net Change 
Other 

Balance 
30 June 05 

Specified Directors      
R.K. Weekes - - - - - 
L. Longginou 23,642,834 - - - 23,642,834 
M. Moody 140,000 - - - 140,000 
S.E. Lonie - - - - - 
      
Specified executives      
A. Longginou 21,050,001 - - - 21,050,001 
D. Lazzarini - - - - - 
S. Button - - - - - 
N. Longginou 21,050,000 - - - 21,050,000 
      
Total 65,882,835 - - - 65,882,835 

(ii) Remuneration of specified Directors and specified executives 
  Primary 
  Salary & Cash  Super-

Specified Direct
R.K. Weekes 
 - 5,288 - 
 
L. Longginou

- 5,362 

 - 10,981 
 
M
 2005 
 
S.E. Lonie 

- 3,600 

 - 3,263 - 
- 2,841 

 
Total remun

- 22,795 
- 23,401 

 
Sp
A
 2005 201,948 - 10,981
 2004 
D. Lazzarini       
 2005 173,614 - 10,981 - 8,746 193
 2004 118,757 - 8,103 - 8,962 135,822
S. Button    
 
 2004 190,487 - 9,887 - 11,281 211,65
N. Longginou       
 2005 155,198 20,000 10,981 - - 
 2004 163,134 - 10,139 - - 
    
Total remuneration: specified executives  
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2
 
(d) Option hol ings of specified Dire  specified exec
 

  

 Balan
1 July 04 

Gran
muner-
ation 

On 
o tions 

Net Change 
Other 

Balance 
30 June 05 

Specified Director   
R 500,000 - - - 500,000 
L. Longginou - - 
M. Moody 400,000 - 
S - - - - 
   
Specified executive   
A ou - - - - 
D. Lazzarini 400,000 - 
N. Longginou - - 
     
Total 1,300,000 

1. DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES (continued) 

d ctors and utives 

ce ted as 
re

Exercise 
f Op

s    
.K. Weekes 

- - - 
- - 400,000 

.E Lonie - 
   

s    
. Longgin - 

- 
-

- 400,000 
 - - 

 
1,300,000 - - - 

  

f remuneratio
tity would ha

n optio d i rm io avo  th
n dopted ng at arm

efer to Note r f  o y re
 

 of sp ied ives  
n indemn ed pa n

 liabil red direc an  arises 
e part 

aith; or 

xtent of t ectors’ i ity. 

    
All equity transactions with specified Directors and specified executives other than those arising from the exercise 
o ns have been entere nto under te s and condit ns no more f urable than ose the 
e ve a  if deali ’s length. 
 
R  17 fo urther details on the ptions held b  specified Di ctors and specified executives. 

(e) Indemnification ecified Directors and specif  execut
A ity agreement has been execut  by the Com ny and each of the Directors, agreeing to i demnify the 
Director against any ity incur tly or indirectly as an officer of the Comp y unless the liability
out of conduct on th of the Director which: 
 

• Involves a lack of good f
• Is contrary to the Company’s express instructions. 

 
There is no monetary limit to the e he Dir ndemn
 
During the financial year, Voxson Limited paid a premium to insure Directors and officers of the Company and 
r
t

depend emen c  b
cCull tson h r

ear valued at $28,851 (2004: 

s and director related entities
5, there were no loans to Dir rector related tities (2004: il). 

om directors and director related enti s 
05, there were no loans payable from Directors or Dire r related entities (2004: $nil).   

elated bodies corporate. Due to the terms and conditions of the insurance arrangements, disclosure of the nature of 
he insurance and the premium are excluded. 

 
f) Related party transactions (

A Director, Mr S.E. Lonie, is an in
provided professional services to M
during the y

ent manag t consultant, w
, Solicitors, w

ho, during the 
ich provided se

ourse of normal
vices to Voxson

usiness, 
ough Rober
$48,444). 

 Limited 

 
irector(g) Loans to d  

At 30 June 200 ectors or Di  en $n
 

r(h) Loans f
t 30 June 20

tie
A cto
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  Consolidated Voxson Limited 
Notes 2005 2004 005 2004 

$ $ $ $ 
.  AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION   

Amounts received or due and receivable 
& Young for: 

 

e financial repor f th
ther entity in the consolidated

70,000 71,00

ices 
2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

 2
  

22

by Ernst  

- Audit or review of th t o e 
 

 
entity and any o
entity 71,000 0 70,000

- Other Serv  
 

 
 

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 benefits  

regate employee entitlement liabilit
prised of: 

-

14 -

visions (current) 14 573,181 629,451 - -

-

,253 1,048,188 - -

 
Employee
The agg y is 
com

 

Accrued wages, salaries and on costs 14 - 40,000 - 

Accrued severance payments 245,349 - - 

Pro
Provisions (non-current) 16 364,723 378,737 - 

 1,183
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24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES  

ly owned group 
e wholly owned group consists of Voxson Limited and its who  owned solidated e ties, Voxson

Ltd.  Ow rship interests in these entities are detailed in No  25. 
 

e  parties in the wholly owned group during the ar consisted 

(a) The payment of rent to Voxson Limited; and 
ayments. 

 transactions were made on commercial conditions and te cept oans secured

Voxson Limited 
 2005 

$ 
2004

$
Aggregate amounts receivable and payable from related 

-owned group at balance date were as 
 

ceivables 3,468,375 3,468,375

3,468,375 3,468,375

 
ate controlling entity is Voxs imited. 

 
in related parties 

The ownership interests in related parties in the wholly owned group are set out in Note 25. 
 

 
 

25. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 
Name of Entity Country of 

Incorporation 
Class of 
Shares 

Net Parent Entity's 
Investment 

Equity Holding 

       
 
 

  2005
$

2004
$

2005 
% 

2004
%

Parent entity 
Voxson Limited 

  
- -

 
- -

    
Consolidated entities    
Voxson Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 3,162,969 4,840,969 100 100
Voxson Sales Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 1 1 100 100
   3,162,970 4,840,970  

Whol
Th lly con nti  
Holdings Pty Ltd and Voxson Sales Pty ne te

Transactions between Voxson Limited and relat
of: 

d ye

(b) Loans advanced to/by controlled entities and rep
 
These rms ex that the l  are un  and 
interest free. 

 

parties in the wholly
follows: 
Non-current re
Non-current payables 
 
Controlling entities
The immediate and ultim on L

Ownership interests 

 
Voxson Limited is the ultimate parent company for all consolidated entities. 
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26.  ATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS ST

perating loss after tax to the net cash flows from operations. 

 
ed 

 $ $ $ $ 

  

s 5,246) (6,165,834) (3,446,328) (31,473,024)

of non-current assets 456,261 417,150 - 39,331

Amortisation of non-current assets 1,052,792 421,561 1,052,792 421,561

Provision for doubtful debts 146,388 449,498 - -

- -
 

- 21,840,969

nt in subsidiary - - 1,678,000 8,159,031

e inventory 4,191 2,317,991 - -

Accrual for IPR - (945,345) - -

variance - - - -

Realisation of deferred income (1,105,507) - - -

ent (301,636) - - -

Net foreign currency losses/(gains) - (13,302)

anges in Assets and Liabilities  

crea  of 
,230

 
-

Decrease in inventory - -

Decrease in ther operating assets 5 996,293 1,048,346

Decrease in ade creditors and bills payable 
 operations (226,152) (539,388)

 
-

Increase/(decrease) in other operating liabilities (474,517) 421,027 (191,392) (24,765)

 benefits and rovisions 92,047 (153,331) -

s on ope alan 88,271 9,808 -

Net cash flow used in operating activities (877,963) (1,295,982) 89,365 (1,853)

(a) Reconciliation of o
 

 Notes CONSOLIDATED Voxson Limit

  2005 2004 2005 2004 
 

Lo s from ordinary activities after tax (38

Non-cash items  

Depreciation 

Provision for loans to wholly owned Group 
entities 

Write down of investme

Provision for obsolet

Purchase order cost 

Net profit on disposal of plant and equipm

- (30,597)

Ch

(In se)/decrease in trade debtors and bills
exchange (973,804) 1,482

542,174 1,010,183

- 

o 206,77 9,065

 tr
attributable to - 

Decrease in employee  p - 

Exchange rate change ning cash b ces - 

 
(b) Reconciliation of cash 

Cash balance comprises: 

- Cash assets 5 229,736 915,805 7,166 8,126

Closing cash balance 229,736 915,805 7,166 8,126
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  CONSOLIDATED 
 

Voxson Limited 

  
 

.   BALANCE SHEET ITEMS  DENOMINATED IN 
    FOREIGN CURRENCIES 

mounts not effectively hedged  
ged  

llar  804,110 - - -

dged  

 - Singapore Dollar 

 Pound 

 491,651

2,900

286,678

3,812
-

- 

- 

-

-
-

 

(a)  Credit risk exposures 
loss that would be recognised if counter pa ies failed to erform as contracted. 

 On-balance sheet financial instruments 
nsolidated entity, e been recognised on the alance 

mount, net of any provisions.  
 

 have any material credit risk exposure arising from concentrations.  The 
 to any individual overseas country or individual cu omer. 

(b) Foreign exchange risk 
ge risk result from operations made in US ain rresponds t he net 

 and the sales made in the forei ncies. T idua c
risk exposure was not material at reporting date. With the value of purchases and sales to be made for the 

to enter into no hedging instrument at reporting date. 

t rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value 
et interest rates and ecti ed average i rest rates 

on those financial assets and financial liabilities, is as follows:  

 

 
 

2005 2004 
$ $ 

2005 2004
$ $ 

27
    

 

A  

Current receivables, not effectively hed  

- United States do
Current payables, not effectively he  

 - United States dollar 

 - Japanese Yen 
 - Euro 
 - British

-
-

-

-
-

- 
- 

- 

-

-

   
 
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

 Credit risk represents the rt  p
 

 The credit risk on financial assets of the co  which hav  b
sheet, is generally the carrying a

 The consolidated entity does not
consolidated entity is not materially exposed

 
st

The foreign exchan dollars m ly, and co o t
position between the purchases gn curre he res l foreign ex hange 

period also uncertain, it has been decided 
 
(c) Interest rate risk 

The consolidated entity’s exposure to interes
will fluctuate as a result of changes in mark  the eff ve weight nte

 

50  



VOXSON LIMITED  
Notes to the Financial Statements  
30 June 2005 
 
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

 
   ng in: Fixed interest rate maturi   

F

2005 
interest rate 

% 
rate 
$ 

1 to 5 Ov
Non-

g 

arrying 

        

(i) Financial assets       

Cash 3.50 229,736 - - - 229,736-

Receivables – trade N/a - - - - 968,809 968,809

    

Total financial assets  229,736 - - - 968,809 1,198,545

    

(ii) Financial liabilities    

T

 
inancial instruments 

 

Weighted 
average 
effective 

 
Floating 
interest 

 
 

1 year 
or less 

$ 

 
 

years 
$ 

 
 
er 5 

years 
$ 

 

interest 
bearin

$ 

Total 
c

amount as 
per the 
balance 
sheet 

$ 

rade creditors N/a - - - - 1,163,393 1,163,393

Other creditors N/a - - - - 146,679 146,679

   

Total financial liabilities - - - - 1,310,072 1,310,072
 

   Fixed interest rate maturing in:   
 Weighte

averagF ancial instruments 
 

effective 
interest rate 

interest 
rate 

1 year 
or les

1 to 5 Over 5 interest amouin

004 

d 
e 

% 

 
Floating 

$ 

 
 

s 
$ 

 
 

years 
$ 

 
 

years 
$ 

 
Non-

bearing 
$ 

Total 
carrying 

nt as 
per the 
balance 

t 
2

shee
$ 

        

(i) Financial assets       

Ca ,805sh 3.50 915,805 - - - - 915

ceivables – trade N/a - - - - 141,391 141,39

   
Re 1

 
Total financial assets  915,805 - - - 141,391 1,057,196

    

(ii) Financial liabilities    

de creditors N/a -Tra - - - 1,389,545 1,389,545

Other creditors N/a - - - - 721,196 721,196

Deferred Revenue N/a - - - - 1,105,507 1,105,507

   

Total financial liabilities - - - - 3,216,248 3,216,248
 

N/A - not applicable for non-interest bearing financial instruments 
  
(d)  Net fair values 

The aggregate carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at the balance date 
approximates their net fair values. 
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29. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS 
 
On 12 April 2005, t e group publicly announ ed its deci on of t scont ue its GSM 
research and development operations due tai goin osses in his divisi n. 
 
The GSM operatio  are reported in No ent rma s part of the co y’s gme
  
Financial Performance Information 
The financial performance of the GSM opera ons for th ear end d 30 June 2005 is a  follows: 
  

2005 2004 
$ 

 activities 5,208,994 96,

irect expenses from ordinary activities (including borrowing costs) 5,744,481 5,237,153 

inary activities before income nse (535,487) 5

h c si he Board of Directors to di in
 to unsus

te 30 ‘Segm

nable on

 Info

g l  t o
 

ns tion’ a mpan GSM se nt. 

ti e y e s

 
 $ 

Revenues from ordinary 5,6 555 

D

(Loss)/profit from ord  tax expe 4 9,402 

Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities - - 

m ordinary activities after income tax expe se (535,487) 5(Loss)/profit fro n 4 9,402 

sset Disposals 
un

re as follows: 

 
A
The carrying amount of the total assets to be disposed of and the total liabilities to be settled as at 30 J e 2005 
a

 
 2004 

$ $ 

63 66

L LIABILITIES ,298 525,

NET ASSETS 1,747,165 2,641,099

 
2005 

 
TOTAL ASSETS 2,195,4 3,1 ,150 

051 TOTA 448

 

uring the financial y et s  f

 $ 

P

Pre-tax gain on dispositio

Tax expense - 

ion after tax 301,636 

- 

Gain on disposit - 

he net cash flows attribut e e a  follows: 

 
D ear ended 30 June 2005, ass  disposal were as ollows: 
 

 2005 2004 
$ 

roceeds from disposition of non-current assets 434,067 - 

Carrying amount of assets (132,431) - 

n 301,636 - 

 
GSM operations cash flows during the year 
T able to the GSM operations for th year ended 30 June 2005 ar s
 

 2005 2004 
$ $ 

870,126 1,147,264 

INV  

FINANCING - - 

NET CASH INFLOWS/(OUTFLOWS) 929,410 1,176,895 

 
OPERATING 

ESTING 59,284 29,631

 

52  



VOXSON LIMITED  
Notes to the Financial Statements  
30 Jun 5
 

e 200  

53  

30. G E  ORMAT – P Y
 

ounting  
Revenues are attribute ogr ic are a  o he expect ocation er ur customer l retail  d

 
(b) Segment Product and tion

The group operates in mi  segm s, in SM and sum .  Geogra th o predom ar  na A alia 
(including New Zealan  Asi

 
gments GSM  Co on e

 2005 2004 0 2004 00 2004 
 $ $ $ $ 
 
Operating revenue 

  
 

   

SE

(a) Segme

Business se

M NT

n

INF

t Acc

IO

 Pol
d to

 Lo
two
d) 

N 

icy
 ge

ca
 do
and

RIM

aph

 
nant

a. 

AR  SE

as b

ent

GM

sed

 be

ENT 

n t

g G

ed l

con

wh

er electronics

e o wil

phically, 

 the

e gr

nsu
2

 

goo

up 

mer
05 
$ 

s. 

operates in two 

 Electronics 

inant eas,

C
2

mely 

solidat
5 
$ 

ustr

d 

 
Sales to customers outside th nsolidated entity 

 
774,927 

 
5,696,555 

 
14,718,876 13, ,54

 
20,415,431 

 
Other revenues from custome utside the consolidated 
entity 

 
 

543,000 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

 
 

- ,00

 
 

- 

 
Total segment revenue 

 
317,927 

 
5,696,555 

 
8,574,618 

 
14,718,876 

 

e co

rs o

4,

5,

 
8,574,618 

 
5 

 
 

0 
 

349

543

 
Unallocated revenue 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- ,97

 
65,050 

 
6 16

 
Total consolidated revenue 

 
5,317,927 

 
5,696,555 

 
8,574,618 

 
14,718,876 13, ,52

 
20,480,481 

 
Resu

    

 
1 

 
909

lts 
 

 
Segm  r lt

 
(535,487) 

 
459,402 

 
6 7

 
2,964,671 ,291 

 
3,424,073 

 
Unallocated expenses 

      
(9,589,907) 

ent esu  73, 78 
 

138

(523,537) 
 
Net l

    
(6,165,834) oss 

  
(385,246) 

 
Note 1  As over 90% of the assets and liabilities of the entity relate to the GSM business segme no seg f and liabilities has b e ed nt, ment split o  assets een p rform
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30. SEGMENT INFORMATION – SECONDARY SEGMENT 

Australia  Asia Other Consolidated 
5 2004 2005 2004 
$ $ $ $ 

nt
        

480,481 

 
Geographic segments 
 2005 2004 2005 2004 200

$ $ $ $  
 
Segme  revenue 8,489,852 14,947,022 4,652,668 4,733,343 767,001 800,116 13,909,521 20,

         

 
3,710,043 

 
1,712,776 

 
- 

 
4,096,641 

  
- 

  
5,809,417 

        

 
Segment assets - 3,710,043 
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31.   EARNIN  PER SHARE 
 
The following s the me a hare data used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share. 
 
 Consolidated 
 2005 

$ 
2004 

$ 
Net loss for the year 
 

(385,246) (6,165,834) 

Loss used in calc ng b and diluted earnings per share. (385,246) (6,165,834) 

GS

 reflect  inco nd s

ulati asic 

rage nu
e 

mb r of ordinary shar

nd o e fin
ated

 the

 yea

quen

ed is i
ards 

n th  proc
AA
plicab

rep
naly

aration o
orm

f an open
basis
liant

ing 

whe

fit fo

osed  man
005

ent’s b
cial repo

   
 Number of 

shares 
Number of 

shares 
   
Weighted ave e es used in calculating basic 
earnings per shar

 
110,384,287 

 
110,384,287 

 
 
32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in this financial report, no matters or circumstances have 
arisen since the e f th ancial r that have significantly affected or may have a significant effect on the 
operations of the consolid  entity, the financial performance of those operations or the financial position of 
the consolidated entity in  subse t year. 
 
33. IMPACT OF ADOPTING AASB EQUIVALENTS TO IASB STANDARDS 
 
Voxson Limit e ess of transitioning its accounting policies and financial reporting from current 
Australian Stand (AG P) to Australian equivalents of International Financial Reporting Standards 
(AIFRS) which will be ap le for the financial year ended 30 June 2006. In 2004, the company allocated 
internal resources to identify key areas that would be impacted by the transition to AIFRS. As a result of this 
process, Voxson has assessed the financial impact as low and has addressed each of the areas using existing 
resources to perform the transition. As Voxson’s financial year-end is 30 June, priority has been given to 
considering the p balance sheet in accordance with AASB equivalents to IFRS as at 1 
July 2004. This a sis f s the  of accounting for AIFRS in the future, and is required when Voxson 
prepares its first fully AIFRS comp  financial report for the year ended 30 June 2006.  
 
The key s re accounting policies are expected to change on adoption of AIFRS and the company’s best 
estimate antitative impact of the changes on total equity as at the date of transition and 30 June 2005 
and on n o r the year ended 30 June 2005 are set out in the following sections.  
 
The figu iscl  are agem est estimates of the quantitative impact of the changes as at the date of 
preparin e 30 June 2  finan rt. The actual effects of transition to AIFRS may differ from the 
estimate d due to ongoing work being undertaken by the AIFRS project teams, potential amendments to 
AIFRSs and interpretations thereof being issued by the standard-setters and IFRIC; and emerging accepted 
practice in the interpretation and application of AIFRS and UIG Interpretations. 
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(a) Reconciliation of equity as presented under AGAAP to that under AIFRS at 1 July 2004 

 Consolidated 

 $ 
otal equity under AGAAP   

Adjustments to retained earnings (net of tax)  
 

 
 
  1 July 2004 * 
 
T 1,455,109
   

 
  

gnition of share-based payment expense  
(i

3,163 

re-based payment reserve  (3,163) 

Total equity under AIFRS  1,455,

Reco
) 

Sha
   

109 
 
* This column represents the adjustments as at the date of transi
 (i) Under AA

tion to
SB 2 Share Based Payments, the company would recogni ue of options granted  

to employees as remuneration as an expense on a pro-rata basis over the vesting period in the income 
statement with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Share-based payment costs are not recognised 

i) Set out below are areas that have also been considered in relation to the transition to AIFRS, but which 

 Intangible assets; and 

 
et profit under AIFRS  (389,791) 

 AIFRS. 
se the fair val

under AGAAP. 
(i

do not result in material impact on Voxson’s financial report: 
 

o Classification of financial instruments; 
o Impairment of assets; 
o
o Income taxes. 

 
(b) Reconciliation of net profit as presented under AGAAP to that under AIFRS at 30 June 2005. 
 
 

 Notes Consolidated 
  $ 
Net loss as reported under AGAAP  (385,246) 
   
Share-based payment expense (i) (4,545) 
  
N
 
(i)  Under AASB 2 Share Based Payments, the Company would recognise the fair value of options granted  

to employees as remuneration as an expense on a pro-rata basis over the vesting period in the income 

doption of AIFRS. 

statement with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Share-based payment costs are not recognised 
under AGAAP. 

 
(c) Restated AIFRS Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2005 
 

o material impacts are expected to the cash flows presented under AGAAP on aN
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The

1. Distribution of equity securities 
 
Ordinary shares 

(a)  Analysis of numbers of equity security holders by size of h ing: 
 

Range Holders Ordinary Shares Percentage of Issued Shares 
 765,651 0.69 

1,001 – 5,000 1,482 3,415,770 3.10 
479 3,157,270 2.86 

10,001 – 100,000 371 10,256,373 9.29 
49 92,789,223 84.06 

Total 3,681 110,384,287 100.00 

 shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 6 September 2005.  
 

 
old

 
1 – 1,000 1,300

5,001 – 10,000 
 

100,001 – over  

 
 
 
 

 
(b) 
(c) lders of Ordinary Shares was: 

77.62 % 

ecurity holders 

Held 
Andrew No 2 Pty Ltd 17 7 3 
Lucas No 2 Pty Ltd 17,141,66  15.53 

17,141,66  3 
Shirley No 2 Pty Ltd 16,475,00  14 3 

ty Ltd (284675 A/C) 3,7 13 1 
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 3,207,58  2 1 

y Ltd 1,300,200 8 
Modern Commerce Enterprise Co Ltd 1,000,000 0.91 
Mr 
Ber
AN
Bou
Ber y Ltd (Lin Jiin Kuai A/C) 785,463 0.71 
Ber 0.71 
Ber 0.71 

 
 

Moonton Pty Ltd 541,576 0.49 
Mr David Frederick Oakley 506,000 0.46 
Mr Lucas Longginou & Mr Nicholas Longginou Super Fund 500,000 0.45 

   
Total 85,786,989

There are 3,100 holders of less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares 
The percentage of the total holding of the twenty largest ho

 
2. Twenty largest equity s
 
Ordinary shares 
 

Shareholder Number of 
Ordinary Shares 

Percentage of 
Issued Shares 

,141,66 15.5
7

Nicholas No 2 Pty Ltd 6 15.5
0 .9

Berne No 132 Nominees P 63,6 3.4
2 .9

Hayward Australasia Pt 1.1

Roger Brian Clarke & Mrs Barbara Joan Clarke 960,000 0.87 
escorp Pty Ltd 883,544 0.80 
Z Nominees Limited 868,014 0.79 
ssal Pty Ltd C/- ABN AMRO Morgans MPS 810,250 0.73 
ne No 132 Nominees Pt
ne No 132 Nominees Pty Ltd (Clarence C W Teng A/C) 785,462 
ne No 132 Nominees Pty Ltd  (Jimmy Helien A/C) 785,462 

Mr Trevor Neil Hay 633,132 0.57
National Nominees Limited 556,691 0.50

 77.72 
   
Total issued shares 110,384,287  
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3. Substantial shareholders 

ubstantial Shareholders in the Company are set out below: 

hareholder Number of 
ares 

Held 

Percentage of 
Issued Shares 

Andrew No 2 Pt 41
Lucas No 2 Pt 41,667 15.53 
Nicholas 41,666 15.53 
Shirley N ,000 14.93 
 
4. Unqu rities 
 
 Number issued Number of 

holders 
Options issued under Voxson Ltd Employ e Option plan 
to take up ordinary shares 

1,600,000 4 
 

ptions issued under Voxson Ltd Executive Options plan 
ke u

1,300,000 3 

 5. Votin

ares, set out in the Company’s Constitution, are: 

 shareholder present at a general meeting has one vote on a show of hands; and 
(b) On a poll, each shareholder has one vote for each fully paid share held. 

 
There are no voting rights attaching to the Options until they hav d c
Ordinary Shares. 

 
S
 
S

Ordinary Sh

y Ltd 17,1 ,667 15.53 
y Ltd 17,1

No 2 Pty Ltd 17,1
o 2 Pty Ltd 16,475

oted equity secu

e

O
to ta p ordinary shares 
 

g rights 
 
The voting rights attaching to the ordinary sh
 

(a) Every

e been exercised an onverted to 
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